KFORCE

mmmmsm PROFESSIONAL STAFFING

Great People = Great Results’

"‘S

*Technology *Finance and Accounting *Health and Life Sciences

2005 Annual Report




force Inc. (NASDAQ: KFRC) is a full-service, specialty staffing
Kfirm providing flexible and permanent staffing solutions for
organizations and career management for individuals in the
specialty skill areas of finance and accounting (FA), technology
(Tech), and health and life sciences (HLS).

Kforce employs more than 2,000 staffing specialists operating in
45 markets. By combining four decades of customer relationships
built on personal respect with the most advanced technology,
Kforce is a leader in specialty staffing—one that challenges the
industry. Everyday, through thousands of one-on-one contacts,
Kforce is gaining the trust of its clients and is making the right
match between organizations and jobseekers.
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TECHNOLOGY

From programmers and
network operators to sys-
tems analysts and ClOs,
Kforce has an exclusive
database that is packed
with the most qualified
candidates to handle sys-
tem upgrades, training,
installation, implementa-
tion, and development. Kforce can provide infor-
mation technology consultants for project work,
assist in helping clients find direct hire person-
nel, or partner with technology departments to
get the job done right. Kforce also specializes in
more sophisticated areas such as systems/appli-
cations programmers, systems analysts, and
networking technicians.

FINANCE & ACCOUNTING STAFFING

At Kforce, we're proud to
be able to provide clients
with the most qualified
finance and accounting
professionals. We work
with individuals at every
level in corporate finance
and taxation, financial
analysis and reporting,
budget preparation and analysis, cost analysis,
audit services, and much more. Kforce also pro-
vides CFOs, controllers, financial analysts, pub-
lic accountants, and other high-level financial
professionals on a contract basis, as well as for
direct hire.

HEALTH AND LIFE SCIENCES

The Kforce Health & Life
Sciences division is com-
prised of the HealthCare,
Clinical Research and
Scientific business units.
The HealthCare business
unit offers experienced
candidates for senior hos-
pital management, health
information management professionals, qualified
registered nurses, licensed practical/vocation-
al nurses, nursing assistants and other clinical
positions. The Clinical Research business unit
specializes in permanent and contract place-
ment services in the drug development area of
pharmaceutical research. Placements within
our Scientific business unit range from labora-
tory experts to scientists in the pharmaceutical,
biotechnology, food and beverage, chemical,
aerospace, polymer coatings, textile, agriculture
and medical devices industries.
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TO MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS, CLIENTS AND EMPLOYEES:

he conclusion of 2005 marks the end of a three-year quest
Tupon which we embarked in the first quarter of 2003. During
that period we have seen our stock rise 164%, which is first in
our proxy peer group, quarterly earnings increase from 1 cent to
17 cents and revenue increase from $123.7 million in the first
quarter of 2003 to $203.6 million for the fourth quarter of 2005.
Since 1999, we have repurchased over 20 million shares at an
average price of $5.64, yielding an approximate 98% return to our
shareholders based on the year end closing price. Cash flow was
strong in 2005. At the end of the fourth quarter, cash on hand
totaled $37.1 million and bank debt outstanding under the credit
facility totaled $35 million. While we did not achieve every goal
from our plan, we are extremely pleased with our accomplish-
ments and extend our appreciation to our associates, consultants
and clients.

Revenues for 2005 exceeded $800 million and EPS was 55 cents.
We believe our ability to grow revenue profitably, both organically
and through strategic efficiently integrated acquisitions, has posi-
tioned us to take advantage of opportunities across our service
offerings over the upcoming years, even through times of eco-
nomic transition. Our translation of top line growth to bottom line
profitability is being reflected in the market, as Kforce's stock hit
a five-year price high in January 2006, and Kforce's market
capitalization reached approximately $500 million.

We continue to make excellent progress toward achieving our
peak cycle target earnings before taxes of 8-10% of revenues.
Earnings before taxes of $11.4 million for the fourth quarter of
2005 were 5.6% of revenues and have improved 300 basis points
from Q4 2004, and are roughly equal to the earnings before taxes
generated for the entire year 2004.

In the last two years, we have focused on customer selection and
profitability. We have achieved record quarterly revenues and
have substantially completed our efforts to reduce revenues from
high volume but low margin clients, which resulted in a revenue
loss of $40 plus million, but helped increase our flex gross profit
percentages 120 basis points in 2005. Since 2003, we have
increased the number of sales associates by 50%, revenue by
over 60%, successfully integrated two acquisitions and we
believe that we are successfully completing our third integration.

We now embark on our next three-year journey, excited about
our prospects and the future for Kforce Professional Staffing. We
are very excited to have VistaRMS and Pinkerton Computer
Consultants join the Kforce family. In addition to enhancing
Kforce Technology Services, the firm now has critical mass in the
Kforce Government Solutions business unit.

As we enter 2006, we are very optimistic for professional and
technical staffing and Kforce specifically as the business cycle
evolves. We believe an intense focus on direct hire revenues,
strong pricing discipline and superior execution will allow us to
drive revenue growth with margin expansion. \We believe we are
still early in the staffing cycle and therefore we are investing in
additional associate hiring in all of our services, particularly
search. Additionally, we are training our associates and equipping
them with the tools to further accelerate overall productivity and
deliver exceptional service to our customers. Once again, we
wish to express our appreciation to our field and corporate teams,
our consultants, clients and shareholders for allowing us the
privilege of serving them.

David L. Dunkel
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

William L. Sanders
President
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction
with Kforce's Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes thereto incorporated into this Annual Report.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Net service revenues $802,265 $661,451 $495,585 $513,547 $658,417
Direct costs of services 542,276 457,567 341,617 345,585 406,017
Gross profit 259,989 203,884 153,968 167,962 252,400
Selling, general and administrative expenses 212,724 185,488 142,915 168,233 244,792
Depreciation and amortization 8,283 5,221 4,371 9,629 17,325
Other expense, net 1,816 1,701 1,214 3,206 4,460
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 37,166 11,474 5,468 (13,106) (14,177)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 14,845 (13,537) 350 102 (2,089)
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle 22,321 25,011 5,118 (13,208) (12,088)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — — — (33,823) —
Net income (loss) $ 22,321 $ 25,011 $ 5118 $(47,031) $ (12,088)
Earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle—basic $0.58 $0.73 $0.17 $(0.42) $(0.38)
Earnings (loss) per share—basic $0.58 $0.73 $0.17 $(1.49) $(0.38)
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 38,527 34,125 30,514 31,577 31,711
Earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle—diluted $0.55 $0.69 $0.16 $(0.42) $(0.38)
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted $0.55 $0.69 $0.16 $(1.49) $(0.38)
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 40,616 36,091 31,231 31,577 31,711
December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 92,539 $ 24,829 $ 40,784 $ 32,126 $ 43,083
Total assets $324,746 $273,195 $160,317 $151,435 $222,772
Total long-term debt $ 38,167 $ 1,727 $ 22,000 $ 22,000 $ 28,185
Stockholders’ equity $210,702 $170,769 $ 91,405 $ 84,846 $138,809
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A")

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Selected
Financial Data included in this Annual Report, including the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, referred to herein as
“Financial Statements.” Also, certain references to particular
information in the Financial Statements are made to assist readers.

OVERVIEW
This overview is intended to assist readers in better under-
standing this MD&A.

Who We Are

We are a national provider of professional and technical spe-
cialty staffing services. At December 31, 2005, we operated 71
field offices covering 43 markets in 50 states and the District
of Columbia. We provide our clients staffing services through
three business segments: Technology (“Tech”), Finance and
Accounting (“FA"), and Health and Life Sciences (“HLS").
Substantially all Tech and FA services are sold and delivered
through our field offices. The HLS segment includes our
Clinical Research, Scientific, Healthcare-Nursing (“Nursing”)
and Health Information Management (“HIM") specialties. The
sales and delivery functions of substantial portions of HLS, par-
ticularly Clinical Research and HIM, are concentrated in our
headquarters, with services being provided for certain clients
through our field offices. Our headquarters provides support
services to our field offices in areas such as human resources,
nationwide recruiting, training, marketing, and national sales
initiatives, in addition to the traditional “back office” support
services like payroll, billing, accounting, legal and tax, which are
highly centralized.

Kforce is focused on providing “staffing solutions” services
to our clients. Our staffing services include Flexible Staffing
Services (“Flex") and Search Services (“Search”).

Flex

Through Flex, we provide clients’ with qualified individuals
(“consultants”) on a temporary basis with the appropriate skills
and experience, when it is determined it is “the right match.”
To be successful, our employees (“associates”) endeavor to (1)
understand the clients’ needs, (2) determine and understand
the capabilities of the consultants being recruited, and (3)
deliver and manage the client-consultant relationship to the sat-
isfaction of both the clients and the consultants. Typically, the
better job Kforce and our consultants do, the longer the assign-
ments last and the more often those clients turn to Kforce for
additional needs.

The Flex business comprised 93.2% of our revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2005. Flex revenues are driven by
hours billed and billing rates. Flex gross profit is determined by

deducting consultant pay, benefits and other related costs
from Flex revenues. Flex associate commissions, related
taxes and other compensation and benefits as well as field
management compensation are included in Selling, General
and Administrative expenses ("SG&A") along with administra-
tive and corporate compensation. The Flex business model
involves attempting to maximize consultant hours and billing
rates, while optimizing consultant pay rates and benefit costs
and commissions and other compensation and benefits for
associates, as well as minimizing the other operating costs
necessary to effectively support such activities.

Search

The Search business is a smaller, yet important part of our
business that involves locating permanent employees for our
clients. We primarily perform searches on a contingency
basis, with fees being earned only if personnel are hired by our
clients. Fees are typically structured as a percentage of the
placed individual’s first-year annual compensation. \We recruit
permanent employees from our Flex consultant population,
from the job boards, and from candidates we identify who are
currently employed and not actively seeking another position.
Sometimes consultants initially work with clients on a Flex
basis and then later are converted into permanent employees,
for which we also receive Search fees. There can be no assur-
ance or expectation that Search revenues will increase if eco-
nomic conditions improve, as has been the case in previous
economic cycles. Clients and recruits are often targets for
both Flex and Search services, and this common focus con-
tributes to our objective of providing integrated solutions for all
of our clients” human capital needs.

Search revenues are driven by placements made and the
fees billed. There are no consultant payroll costs associated
with the placement and thus all search revenue generally
increases gross profit by a like amount. Search associate com-
missions, compensation and benefits are also included in
SG&A. Search revenues comprised 6.8% of revenue in 2005.

Our Industry

We serve Fortune 1000 companies, as well as small and
mid-size local and regional companies, with our largest ten
clients representing approximately 22% of revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2005. The specialty staffing indus-
try is made up of thousands of companies, most of which are
small local firms providing a limited service offering to a small
local client base. We believe Kforce is one of the ten largest
specialty staffing firms in the United States, that the ten firms
combined have a market share of less than 21% of the appli-
cable market and that no single firm has a larger than 5%
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market share. Competition in a particular market can come
from many different companies, either large or small. We
believe, however, that our geographic presence, diversified
service offerings within our core businesses, and focus on
consistent sales and delivery that is highly disciplined, provide
a competitive advantage particularly with larger clients that
have operations in multiple markets.

We believe 2003 was a bottoming-out year for the economy
and for the staffing industry after having declined for approxi-
mately three years and that indicators favorable for staffing
services improved through 2006. Selected industry reports indi-
cate the United States temporary staffing industry has shown
revenue levels of $76 billion in 2003, $81 billion in 2004 and
$107 billion in 2005. Of course, no predictions can or should be
made about the general economy, the staffing industry as a
whole, or specialty staffing in particular. We do believe, how-
ever, that a sustained economic recovery will stimulate demand
for substantial additional U.S. workers or conversely, an eco-
nomic slowdown will cause demand for additional U.S. workers
to contract, that Flex demand generally increases before
demand for permanent placements increases, that our three
areas of focus, Tech, FA and HLS, will be among the higher
growth categories in both the short and long term and that over
the long term, temporary staffing will become a higher percent-
age of total jobs, particularly in the professional and technical
areas. Further, we believe that the recent positive trends in our
operating results, which we believe have been enhanced by the
streamlining of our operations and centralizing certain support
functions during the economic downturn of 2001-2003, demon-
strate a strong positioning for success. There can be no assur-
ance that customer demand for Kforce's specialty staffing
sectors will return to previous levels or that pricing will return to
historical levels. In addition, according to a recent survey of
board members of mostly global companies by the American
Staffing Association, 90% now utilize temporary staffing serv-
ices. There can be no assurance that the Kforce Health and Life
Sciences business segment will be able to assemble a suffi-
cient candidate pool to service client needs. Partially driven by
requirements at many public companies pertaining to the adop-
tion of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, compe-
tition for finance and accounting candidates significantly
increased in 2004 and 2005. There can be no assurance that
Kforce will be able to assemble a sufficient candidate pool to
service client needs in finance and accounting. In addition, a
number of national staffing companies are increasingly utilizing
a lower-priced staffing preferred-vendor model. These factors
may impact the future growth and profitability of Kforce.
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Future Growth

Kforce's growth may be organic and/or through acquisition
of other entities that enhance or expand our existing busi-
nesses. We believe that we are positioned to acquire and inte-
grate other businesses that are strategically beneficial as
evidenced by our successful acquisition and integration of
Hall, Kinion and Associates, Inc. in June 2004 and VistaRMS,
Inc. in February 2005.

On January 31, 2006, Kforce completed the acquisition of
PCCI Holdings, Inc. (“PCCI") a privately held company based in
Trevose, Pennsylvania. PCCl is engaged in the business of pro-
viding technology staffing and Federal government IT services.
We believe the transaction will be accretive in 2006.

Highlights

The sections that follow this overview discuss and refer to
critical accounting estimates and recent pronouncements,
Kforce's results of operations and important aspects of its lig-
uidity and capital resources. Set forth below are what we
believe to be important highlights of our operating results and
our positioning for the future. Such highlights should be con-
sidered in the context of all of the discussions herein and in
conjunction with the Financial Statements. We believe such
highlights are as follows:

e Revenue improved 21.3% during 2005, with growth in
each of Kforce's operating segments for the year.

Search revenue grew 32.6% during 2005.

Kforce completed the acquisition and successful integra-
tion of VistaRMS during the first quarter. The integration of
sales associates and the transition of the corporate head-
quarters all occurred on schedule.

Operating expenses were reduced to 27.5% of revenues
for 2005 versus 28.8% for 2004, and 29.7% for 2003.

Total year net income before taxes of $37.2 million in 2005
is an improvement of 224% over $11.5 million in 2004.

Cash flow was strong in 2005. At the end of the fourth
quarter, cash on hand totaled $37.1 million and bank debt
outstanding under the credit facility totaled $35 million.

We believe that the quality of accounts receivable, our pri-
mary operating asset, continues to be good, with days
sales outstanding (“DSO") at 37 days and 2005 bad debt
expense of $38,000.

Kforce's stock price on the Nasdag National Market
increased 0.5% from $11.10 on December 31, 2004, to
$11.16 at December 31, 2005.



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

The SEC has indicated that “critical accounting estimates”
may be material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment
necessary to account for highly uncertain matters or the sus-
ceptibility of such matters to change, and due to their material
impact on financial condition or operating performance.
Readers should also refer to the Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in Note 1 to the Financial Statements for
additional information. The following discussion is intended to
assist the readers’ understanding of the judgments, accounting
estimates, and uncertainties inherent in the more significant of
Kforce's policies.

This section is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all
accounting estimates and all accounting policies are not set
forth in the Financial Statements. In many cases, the account-
ing treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, with no need for management'’s judgment
in their application. There are also areas in which manage-
ment’'s estimates and its judgment in selecting any available
alternative would not produce a materially different result.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts

Kforce has established a reserve for estimated credit
losses and fallouts on trade receivables based on our past
experience and estimates of potential future write-offs, a
specific analysis of material receivable balances that are past
due and ongoing analysis of factors including short and long-
term write-off trends, changes in economic conditions, and
concentration of accounts receivable among clients. The
allowance as a percentage of gross accounts receivable was
4.9% as of December 31, 2005 and 6.5% as of December 31,
2004. As of December 31, 2005, no single client has a receiv-
able balance greater than 3.3% of total accounts receivable,
and the largest ten clients represent approximately 20.2% of
the total accounts receivable balance. Kforce incurred signif-
icant write-offs of accounts receivable in certain prior years.
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
Kforce incurred bad debt expense (benefit), including the
effects of net write-offs and write-ons plus changes in the
allowance for doubtful accounts, totaling approximately
$38,000, $1,846,000 and $(394,000), respectively. In addi-
tion, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, Kforce incurred fallouts of search placements which
have been deducted from net service revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and com-
prehensive income totaling approximately $1,967,000,
$1,431,000 and $1,150,000, respectively. We cannot predict

that such recent results can be sustained, particularly in a
period of revenue growth. Also, it is possible that the write-
off results could be materially impacted as the composition
of accounts receivable changes over time. This is especially
true if the economy deteriorates. We continually review and
refine the estimation process to make it as responsive to
these changes as possible.

Income Taxes

Kforce incurred net losses for each of the four years ending
December, 31, 2002, and, as a result, has significant net oper-
ating loss carryforwards (NOLs) for both federal and state
income tax purposes. For accounting purposes, the estimated
tax effects of such NOLs, plus or net of timing differences,
result in current and non-current deferred tax assets. However,
a determination must be made that it is “more likely than not”
that the deferred tax assets will be realized, or valuation
allowances must be established to offset such assets. At
December 31, 2002, a “more likely than not” conclusion could
not be reached, and the deferred tax assets were fully reserved.
Kforce also acquired certain deferred tax assets in 2004 from
Hall Kinion which were also fully reserved at the date of acqui-
sition. Kforce had net income during each of the quarters in the
year ended December 31, 2003, and portions of the deferred
tax assets were recognized in that year by reducing such assets
and the related valuation allowances instead of providing
income tax expense, other than certain state tax expense or
benefits. Kforce also had net income during each of the quarters
in the year ended December 31, 2004. Kforce believes that prof-
itability in each of the quarters for the years ended December 31,
2003 and December 31, 2004, and the corresponding forecast
of future operating earnings, justifies changing the conclusion
reached at December 31, 2002. Therefore, for the year ended
December 31, 2004, Kforce recognized a $13.5 million income
tax benefit, which consists of the reversal of the valuation
allowance in 2004, net of current and deferred income tax of
$5.7 million. In addition, during the year ended December 31,
2004, Kforce reversed $21.8 million of valuation allowance
related to deferred tax assets acquired in conjunction with the
Hall Kinion acquisition. This reversal was recorded as an offset
to goodwill. The tax provision recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2005 totaled $14.8 million, which resulted from
Kforce earning income before income taxes totaling $37.2 mil-
lion and Kforce's effective tax rate of 39.9%. At December 31,
2005, Kforce has a remaining valuation allowance of $1.4 million
to offset certain deferred tax assets, including certain deferred
tax assets acquired from Hall Kinion, for which a “more likely
than not” conclusion could not be reached. Kforce will continue
to evaluate this conclusion on a quarterly basis.
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Goodwill

Kforce conducts an annual assessment of the carrying value
of goodwill in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards. The annual assessments found that no impairment
existed for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 or
2003. The annual assessment requires estimates and judg-
ments by management to determine valuations for each
“reporting unit,” which for Kforce are Tech, FA, and HLS.
Although not required, we may use independent outside
experts to assist in performing such valuations. An independ-
ent expert valuation was performed in 2004, and management
followed a similar methodology to reach its conclusion in 2003
and 2005. To the extent that economic conditions or the actual
business activities and prospects of Kforce are materially
worse in the future, the carrying value of goodwill assigned to
any or all of its reporting units could require material write-
downs. Kforce had goodwill of $125.0 million and $108.4
million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. $16.4
million of the increase in Goodwill is attributable to the
acquisition of Vista and $0.2 million is attributable to income
tax related adjustments to the Hall Kinion acquisition goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Kforce periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived
assets to determine if impairment has occurred. In Kforce's
case, this primarily relates to fixed assets, capitalized software,
and identifiable intangible assets (not goodwill) from acquisi-
tions, which are being depreciated or amortized as described in
the Financial Statements and which had net book values at
December 31, 2005 of $10.1 million, $7.6 million, and $9.3 mil-
lion, respectively. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the
period identified. Significant judgment is required to determine
whether or not impairment has occurred. The determination is
made by evaluating expected future undiscounted cash flows or
the anticipated recoverability of costs incurred and, if necessary,
determining the amount of the loss, if any, by evaluating the fair
value of the assets. As further described in Note 4 to the
Financial Statements, impairment write-offs were $0.5 million in
2004, related to certain internally developed and purchased soft-
ware and were included in selling, general and administrative
expenses (“SG&A"). No such write-offs were recorded in 2003.
Evaluation of the impairment of long-lived assets requires the
exercise of continuing judgment and estimates by management.

Self-Insurance

Kforce offers employee benefits programs, including work-
ers compensation and health insurance, to eligible employees,
for which Kforce is self-insured for a portion of the cost.
Kforce retains liability up to $250,000 for each workers com-
pensation claim and up to $200,000 annually for each health
insurance claim for which it is not insured. These self-insurance
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costs are accrued using estimates to approximate the liability
for reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.
Kforce believes that its estimation processes are adequate
and its estimates in these areas have consistently been simi-
lar to actual results. However, estimates in this area are highly
subjective and future results could be materially different.

Revenue Recognition

Net service revenues constitute the largest single item in
our financial statements, though estimates in regard to rev-
enue recognition are not material in nature. Net service rev-
enues consist of Search fees and Flex billings inclusive of
billable expenses and net of credits, discounts, rebates and
fallouts. Kforce recognizes Flex billings based on the hours
worked and reported, together with reimbursable expenses,
by placed consultants. Search fees are recognized upon place-
ment, net of an allowance for “fallouts.” Fallouts are Search
placements that do not complete the applicable contingency
period which vary on a contract-by-contract basis.
Contingency periods are typically ninety days or less. The
allowance for fallouts is estimated based upon historical activ-
ity of Search placements that do not complete the contin-
gency period and expectations of future fallouts, and is
included with the allowance for doubtful accounts as a
reduction in receivables.

Accrued Commissions

Associates earn commissions as a percentage of actual rev-
enue or gross profit pursuant to a calendar year basis commis-
sion plan. For each associate, the amount of commissions
paid as a percentage of revenue or gross profit increases as
revenue levels increase. For interim periods, Kforce accrues
commissions for actual revenue at a percentage equal to the
percentage of total expected commissions payable to total
revenue for the entire year. In estimating the percentage of
expected commissions payable, Kforce uses factors including
anticipated write—offs and the revenue anticipated for each
associate. To the extent that these estimates differ from the
actual results, commissions accrued could be materially differ-
ent than commissions paid. Because of the calendar year
basis of the plans, this estimation process is more significant
at interim quarter ends than it is at calendar year end.

Accrued Bonuses

Kforce pays bonuses to certain executive management, field
management and corporate employees based on, or after giv-
ing consideration to, a variety of measures of quarterly and
annual performance. Executive management, field manage-
ment, and certain corporate employees bonuses are accrued
for payment after year end, based in part upon anticipated
annual results compared to annual budgets. Field management



bonuses are a component of approved compensation plans
which specify individual incentive target levels based on actual
results. Variances in revenue, gross margin, selling, general
and administrative expenses or net income at a consolidated,
segment or individual manager level can have a significant
impact on the calculations and therefore the estimates of the
required accruals. Accordingly, the actual earned bonuses may
be materially different from the estimates used to determine
the quarterly accruals.

EFFECTS OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The following recently issued accounting pronouncements
were effective for Kforce beginning January 1, 2004, and man-
agement has determined that the adoption of these standards
had no material impact on Kforce's consolidated financial
statements.

e SFAS 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations,” requires entities to record the fair value of a
liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in
which it occurred.

SFAS 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Corrections,”
rescinds SFAS 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt,” and an amendment of that
Statement, SFAS 64, "“Extinguishments of Debt Made to
Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS 145 also rescinds
SFAS 44, "Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor
Carriers,” and SFAS 13, "Accounting for Leases,” eliminating
an inconsistency between certain sale-leaseback transactions.

SFAS 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities,” addresses financial accounting and
reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities
and nullifies EITF Issue 94-3, “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires costs associated with
exit or disposal activities to be recognized when the costs
are incurred, rather than at a date of commitment to an exit
or disposal plan.

SFAS 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” amends and clarifies
financial accounting and reporting for derivative instru-
ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives)
and for hedging activities under SFAS 133. The changes
in SFAS 149 improve financial reporting by requiring that
contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted

for similarly. In particular, SFAS 149 (1) clarifies under what
circumstances a contract with an initial net investment
meets the characteristic of a derivative discussed in
paragraph 6(b) of SFAS 133, (2) clarifies when a deriva-
tive contains a financing component, (3) amends the
definition of an underlying asset or liability to conform it
to language used in FIN 45, and (4) amends certain
other existing pronouncements.

SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Certain Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity,”
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and
measures certain financial instruments with characteris-
tics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer
classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a
liability (or an asset in some circumstances).

SFAS 153, “"Exchange of non-monetary assets,” amends
APB Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception for non-
monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and
replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-
monetary assets that do not have commercial substance.
This statement is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
Kforce's consolidated financial statements.

In December of 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") issued a revised version of SFAS 123, “Share-
Based Payment” (SFAS 123R). This statement establishes
standards for the accounting for transactions in which an
entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods and serv-
ices, but focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in
which an entity obtains employee services in share-based pay-
ment transactions. This statement supersedes APB Opinion
No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its
related implementation guidance. This statement requires a
public entity to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited
exceptions). That cost is recognized over the period in which
the employee is required to provide service in exchange for
the award, which is usually the vesting period. No compensa-
tion cost is recognized for equity instruments for which
employees do not render the requisite service. This statement
is effective for Kforce as of the beginning of the first annual
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Kforce
intends to adopt SFAS 123R using the modified prospective
method, and management does not believe the adoption of
this standard will have a material impact on Kforce's consoli-
dated financial statements as all of Kforce's outstanding stock
options were fully vested as of December 31, 2005.

KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 7



In May of 2005, FASB issued SFAS 154, “Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections.” This statement replaces APB Opinion 20,
“Accounting Changes,” and SFAS 3, "“Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” This statement
changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of
a change in accounting principle, and applies to all voluntary
changes in accounting principle. This statement also applies to
changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the
unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include spe-
cific transition provisions. Previously, APB Opinion 20 required
that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recog-
nized by including in net income of the period of the change the
cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle.
SFAS 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’
financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it
is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or
the cumulative effect of the change. This statement is effective
for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005. Management does
not believe the adoption of this standard will have a material
impact on Kforce's consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Kforce saw a return to profitability in 2003 despite continu-
ous challenges in the macro-economic environment.
Profitability continued in 2004 and 2005 driven by revenue
growth in all segments. We believe the expected stabilization
of the economic outlook will allow for continued improving
trends in the staffing industry and growth opportunities across
our business lines in terms of both revenue and profitability.
We believe this is particularly true in the Flex component of
our revenues, which historically has shown growth during the
early stages of an economic recovery. Our Search business
has shown growth throughout 2004 and 2005; however, it
remains difficult to predict whether there will be future growth
in our Search business.

We believe key components to our recent success were the
initiatives undertaken during the last several years to restruc-
ture both our back office and field operations. The results of
these efforts have increased operating efficiencies, thereby
lowering our break-even level and enabling us to be more
responsive to our clients. We believe our field operations
model, which allows us to deliver our service offerings in a dis-
ciplined and consistent manner across all geographies and
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business lines, as well as our highly centralized back office
operations, are competitive advantages and keys to our future
growth and profitability.

The acquisitions of Hall Kinion, effective on June 7, 2004,
and Vista, effective February 1, 2005, impacted our financial
results and business drivers in the periods subsequent to the
acquisitions. As a result of our successful integration efforts,
revenues and costs contributed by the acquired entities are
merged into the Kforce business segments, making it not fea-
sible to accurately estimate the impact of the acquired busi-
nesses on Kforce's consolidated revenues and margins.
Exclusive of any impacts of the acquisitions, we believe that
demand is increasing and revenues are growing in all business
segments. In addition, we believe that the acquisitions have
provided a positive impact on Flex revenues for the Technology
and Finance and Accounting segments. Search business and
the HLS segment were not materially affected by the acquisi-
tions. Kforce believes a portion of the increase in 2004 SG&A,
primarily during the second quarter of 2004, is attributable to
non-recurring integration expenses, transaction-related
charges and temporary duplicate expenses related to the
acquisition of Hall Kinion.

Net Service Revenues. The following table sets forth, as a per-
centage of net service revenues, certain items in our consolidated
statements of operations for the indicated years:

Year Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Revenue by Segment:

Tech 46.2% 463% 451%

FA 304 295 24.8

HLS 23.4 24.2 30.1
Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Revenue by Time:
Flex 93.2% 93.7% 93.9%
Search 6.8 6.3 6.1
Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Gross profit 324% 308% 31.1%
Selling, general and

administrative expenses 26.5% 28.0% 28.8%
Income before income taxes 4.6% 1.7% 1.1%
Net income 2.8% 38% 1.0%



The following table details net service revenues by service offering for each business segment and percentage changes from
the prior year.

Increase Increase
(In thousands) 2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003
Tech
Flex $352,743 19.7% $294,598 36.0% $216,609
Search 18,037 58.3% 11,397 59.1% 7,162
Total Tech $370,780 21.2% $305,995 36.7% $223,771
FA
Flex $211,873 25.1% $169,411 63.5% $103,630
Search 31,834 22.2% 26,058 36.0% 19,157
Total FA $243,707 24.7% $195,469 59.2% $122,787
HLS
Flex $182,775 17.1% $156,071 7.7% $144,972
Search 5,003 27.8% 3,916 (3.4)% 4,055
Total HLS $187,778 17.4% $159,987 7.4% $149,027
Total Flex $747,391 20.5% $620,080 33.3% $465,211
Total Search 54,874 32.6% 41,371 36.2% 30,374
Total revenue $802,265 21.3% $661,451 33.5% $495,585

Kforce experienced revenue growth in all segments in 2005 as well as 2004. Tech revenue increased 21.2% in 2005 versus a
36.7% increase in 2004 from 2003. FA revenue increased 24.7% in 2005 building on a 59.2% increase in 2004. Our HLS busi-
ness segment grew by 17.4% in 2005 compared to revenue growth of 7.4% in 2004. Tech revenues were supplemented by the
acquisition of Vista which occurred in February of 2005. FA and HLS revenues were unaffected by the Vista acquisition.
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While quarterly comparisons are not fully discussed herein, certain quarterly revenue trends are referred to in discussing the
annual comparisons. This 2005 quarterly information is presented only for this purpose.

2005 Quarter Ended

(In thousands, except Billing Days) March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Billing Days 63 64 64 61
Flex Revenue
Tech $ 84,961 $ 87,956 $ 90,281 $ 89,545
FA 51,279 51,627 54,998 53,969
HLS 43,174 44,993 47,907 46,701
Total Flex $179,414 $184,576 $193,186 $190,215

Search Revenue

Tech $ 4,592 $ 4,307 $ 4,793 $ 4,345
FA 7,750 8,302 8,060 7,722
HLS 1,144 1,285 1,254 1,320

Total Search $ 13,486 $ 13,894 $ 14,107 $ 13,387

Total Revenue

Tech $ 89,553 $ 92,263 $ 95,074 $ 93,890
FA 59,029 59,929 63,058 61,691
HLS 44,318 46,278 49,161 48,021

Total revenue $192,900 $198,470 $207,293 $203,602

Flexible Billings. The primary drivers of Flex are the number of hours billed, bill rate per hour and, to a limited degree, the
amount of expenses incurred by Kforce that are billable to the client.

Changing market share and the acquisition of Vista, coupled with overall changes in opportunities as the result of continued
economic recovery are the main factors in changes in the number of hours billed. Total hours billed increased 12.8% to 16.7 mil-
lion hours in 2005 from 14.8 million hours in 2004, due to increases in all segments. The increase of 39.8% in 2004 from 2003
was primarily a result of the economic recovery and the acquisition of Hall Kinion. Flex hours billed for the year, by segment, were
as follows:

Increase Increase
(In thousands) 2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003
Tech 5,865 13.1% 5,185 39.3% 3,722
FA 7,116 14.5% 6,214 70.4% 3,647
HLS 3,746 9.0% 3,435 6.0% 3,241
Total hours billed 16,727 12.8% 14,834 39.8% 10,610
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Billable expenses increased 18.8% in 2005 to $15.4 million from $12.9 million in 2004 and increased 9.4% in 2004 from $11.8
million in 2003. The increase in 2005 was due to increases in HLS segment project work and the increase in 2004 is attributable
to increases in all segments’ project work. As the economic environment improves, clients’ requests for consultants for longer
assignments, which usually involve travel, typically increase. Changes in HLS billed expenses have corresponded with the overall
changes in Flex billings for the segment. Flex billable expenses included in revenue for the year by segment were:

Increase Increase
(In thousands) 2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003
Tech $ 2,897 (6.9)% $ 3,112 14.6% $ 2,714
FA 714 (34.7)% 1,093 16.4% 939
HLS 11,745 34.6% 8,724 6.9% 8,162
Total billable expenses $15,356 18.8% $12,929 9.4% $11,815

Search Fees. The increase or decrease in Search fees is pri-
marily attributable to the increase or decrease in the number
of placements. Total placements increased 28.7% to 4,589 in
2005 and increased 34.8% to 3,567 placements in 2004 from
2,646 in 2003. An increase in the average placement fee of
3.1% in 2005 and 1.0% in 2004 also contributed to the results.
We believe these results are primarily attributable to the
improving economic conditions. Search activity historically
increases after economic conditions have shown sustained
improvement and is strongest during the peak of an economic
cycle, although there can be no assurance that this historical
trend will be followed in the current cycle. We believe that the
acquisition of Vista has only had a minimal impact on Search
revenue for 2005.

Gross Profit. Gross profit on Flex billings is determined by
deducting the direct cost of services (primarily flexible person-
nel payroll wages, payroll taxes, payroll-related insurance, and
subcontract costs) from net service revenues. Consistent with
industry practices, gross profit dollars from search fees are
equal to revenues, because there are generally no direct costs
associated with such revenues. Gross profit increased 27.5%

to $260.0 million in 2005 and increased 32.4% to $203.9 mil-
lion in 2004 from $154.0 million in 2003. Gross profit as a per-
centage of net service revenues increased to 32.4% in 2005
compared to 30.8% in 2004 and 31.1% in 2003.

The change in gross profit is attributable to changes in vol-
ume evidenced by changes in hours billed for Flex and for the
number of placements for Search combined with changes in
the spread between bill rate and pay rate (“Flex Rate”) for
Flex or the bill rate (“Rate"”) for Search. The increase in gross
profit for Flex from 2004 to 2005 was $42.6 million, of which
$23.2 million resulted from an increase in volume and $19.4
million resulted from an increase in the Flex Rate. The
increase in Search gross profit from 2004 to 2005 was $13.5
million, comprised of a $12.0 million increase in volume and a
$1.5 million increase in Rate. The increase in gross profit for
Flex from 2003 to 2004 was $38.9 million, of which $46.2 mil-
lion resulted from an increase in volume and $7.3 million
resulted from a decrease in the Flex Rate. The increase in
Search gross profit from 2003 to 2004 was $11.0 million,
comprised of a $10.5 million increase in volume and a $0.5
million increase in Rate.

Changes in total gross profit percentage for the year by segment are as follows:

Increase Increase
2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003
Tech 29.6% 7.3% 27.6% 0.3% 27.5%
FA 38.3% 2.2% 37.5% (5.3)% 39.6%
HLS 30.3% 5.0% 28.8% (1.8)% 29.3%
Total gross profit percentage 32.4% 5.1% 30.8% (0.8)% 31.1%
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Because Search revenue is accounted for as 100% gross
profit, changes in the amount of search fees as a percent
of total revenue can significantly impact the total gross
profit percentage.

Flex gross profit percentage has been positively impacted
by improvements in the Flex Rate between 2004 and 2005.
We attribute this improvement to our continued focus on pric-
ing, client mix, and business mix. Although we continue to see
improvement, market pressures on pay rates as supply tightens
impact the flex gross profit percentage negatively.

Flex gross profit percentage was negatively impacted from
2003 to 2004 by a shift in our client base to larger client con-
tracts which provide a higher volume of business but often

have lower margins. Additionally, payroll taxes, particularly
unemployment taxes, which are highest in the first quarter of
the year because employees have not yet earned sufficient
wages to exceed the basis on which taxes are payable, have
risen in recent years and may continue to rise and negatively
impact Flex gross profit. In some cases, gross profit percent-
ages for Flex were negatively impacted during 2004 by cus-
tomer pressure to reduce bill rates and our inability to lower
consultant pay rates in response to customer pressures. The
reduction in gross profit percentage for the FA segment dur-
ing 2004 was primarily the result of the inclusion of a larger
mix of professional administrative positions contributed by the
OnStaff group.

Below is a table detailing Flex gross profit percentage for the year by segment.

Increase Increase
2005 (Decrease) 2004 (Decrease) 2003
Tech 26.0% 4.9% 24.8% (1.3)% 25.2%
FA 29.0% 4.1% 27.9% (1.9)% 28.4%
HLS 28.4% 4.9% 27.0% (1.2)% 27.4%
Total Flex gross profit percentage 27.4% 4.7% 26.2% (1.4)% 26.6%

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses.
SG&A expenses were $212.7 million, $185.5 million, and
$142.9 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, increasing
by 14.7% during 2005 and increasing 29.7% during 2004.
SG&A expenses as a percentage of net service revenues
decreased to 26.5% in 2005 and 28.0% in 2004 compared to
28.8% for 2003.

The increase in SG&A expense in 2005, as compared to
2004 and 2003, is primarily attributable to increases in com-
pensation expense as discussed below. Even with increasing
compensation expense in 2005 and 2004, SG&A expenses as
a percentage of net service revenues decreased in both 2005
and 2004 from prior year levels.

Total commissions, compensation, payroll taxes, and bene-
fits costs were $164.7 million, $137.9 million and $101.0 mil-
lion representing 77.4%, 74.4% and 70.6% of total SG&A for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respec-
tively. Increases in commissions and other incentive compen-
sation are due to increases in gross profit and improved sales.
Additional increases in compensation expense are due prima-
rily to increases in headcount to support the increased volume
of business, the increasing costs of payroll taxes, particularly
unemployment taxes which have risen in recent years and
compensation expense related to restricted stock and stock
options in 2005 and 2004 as discussed below. The guiding prin-
ciples related to employee compensation include competitive
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compensation plans that clearly pay for performance and align
with Kforce's objectives. Commissions and related payroll
taxes and benefit costs are variable costs driven primarily by
revenue and gross profit levels achieved by associates.

In January 2002, Kforce issued 223,800 shares of restricted
stock to certain members of senior management and other
employees in exchange for voluntarily reducing their 2002
salary and cash bonus potential. These shares vested over a
five-year period with an acceleration clause if certain Kforce
common stock price thresholds were met. During 2003 and
2002, $221,000 and $212,000, respectively, were charged to
compensation expense for the straight-line amortization of
vesting over the five-year period. On January 5, 2004, Kforce
common stock closed at a price level that fully satisfied the
acceleration clause for the 2002 shares and all of such
restricted stock thereby vested. Because Kforce had been
amortizing the value of such restricted stock on a straight-line
basis over the five-year period, and the stock price threshold
had not been met on or prior to December 31, 2003, Kforce
was required to record the unamortized balance of $673,000
as compensation expense in the period when the stock price
threshold was achieved, which was the first quarter of 2004.

On September 9, 2004, the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors of Kforce accelerated the vesting period
of stock options for all current employees that would other-
wise have been unvested on January 1, 2005. The vesting



period of options to purchase a total of 855,662 shares of
Kforce's common stock was accelerated. These options are
held by fifteen employees, including options to purchase an
aggregate of 748,162 shares of Kforce's common stock held
by six Executive Officers. Because of this accelerated vest-
ing, Kforce does not currently have any outstanding options
that would otherwise remain unvested on July 1, 2005.
Accordingly, fair value accounting required by SFAS 123R,
which will be adopted by Kforce on January 1, 2006, will not
be applicable to any of Kforce's currently outstanding options.

Kforce recorded $1,106,000 of compensation expense in
2005 related to severance of $882,000, option acceleration of
$130,000, and restricted stock acceleration of $94,000 due to
the departure of an executive officer. Kforce expects the
remaining affected employees to continue to provide services
through their applicable original vesting dates; therefore, there
is no additional current expense as a result of the acceleration.
If all affected employees were to terminate their employment
prior to the applicable original vesting dates, the maximum
future expense as of December 31, 2005 would be approxi-
mately $751,000, and was reduced to approximately $59,000
after the scheduled vesting dates in January 2006 passed.

On November 30, 2004, Kforce accelerated the vesting of
191,930 shares of performance restricted common stock that
were granted to seven members of senior management in the
first quarter of 2003. These shares were originally scheduled
to vest in February 2005. Of this grant, 161,646 shares were
granted to the CEO and the next four highest compensated
employees. Kforce recorded $27,000 of compensation
expense related to this acceleration.

In addition to those activities undertaken to improve effi-
ciencies, Kforce has attempted to manage its accounts
receivable to minimize write-offs. Though there can be no

assurance that Kforce will be able to maintain low levels of
write-offs in the future, Kforce's ability to sustain minimum
write-offs and maintain days sales outstanding of accounts
receivable at low levels has contributed to its continued low
levels of SG&A as a percentage of revenue. Bad debt
expense was $38,000 and $1.8 million or 0.0% and 0.3% of
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The year ended December 31, 2003 had a net
credit to expense of $0.4 million.

Kforce has substantially restructured both its field and back
office operations over the past several years. \We believe that
these changes not only have had a significant impact on
reductions in SG&A expenses in 2003, but also have allowed
us to maintain a relatively low level of SG&A as a percentage
of revenue, as revenues increased in 2004 and 2005. Some of
the activities completed over the past three years as a result
of restructuring include: (1) the roll-out of new front end soft-
ware and related methodology in our field operations to
ensure a consistent, disciplined process in our sales, recruit-
ing and delivery activities; (2) the restructuring of compensa-
tion plans to more closely align with actual performance; and
(3) the restructuring and consolidation of our technology infra-
structure. As a result of increased efficiencies achieved by
these actions, we believe the back office and other support
service costs will increase at a lower rate than our revenues
and profit in a growing environment. Additional systems initia-
tives are being undertaken in 2006 to further automate and
integrate processing and support activities, which are
expected to make them more efficient to scale, while also
enhancing exceptional customer service capabilities. For
example, we have acquired new time-entry and billing sys-
tems that are expected to be implemented in late 2006 or
early 2007.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization were $8.3 million, $5.2 million and $4.4 million in 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively, representing an increase of 58.6% and an increase of 19.4% during 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization expense as a percentage of net service revenue increased to 1.0% in 2005 from 0.8% for 2004
and 0.9% for 2003. Decreases or increases by category of expense, for the year, are as follows:

Percent Percent

2005 Increase 2004 Increase 2003
Expense (Decrease) Expense (Decrease) Expense

(In thousands)
Fixed asset depreciation $1,749 (15.6)% $2,073 (21.5)% $2,641
Capital lease asset depreciation 1,286 466.5 227 — —
Capital software amortization 1,459 94.8 749 (23.2) 976
Intangible assets amortization 3,502 90.7 1,836 338.2 419
Other amortization 287 (14.6) 336 0.0 335
Total depreciation and amortization $8,283 58.6% $5,221 19.4% $4,371
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The increase in expense in 2005 as compared to 2004 is pri-
marily due to increases in amounts of intangible assets amor-
tized as intangible assets increased from the Hall Kinion and
Vista acquisitions in June of 2004 and February 2005, respec-
tively, new capital leases for technology equipment, and
increased capital software amortization related to new front
end software. The increase in expense in 2004 as compared
to 2003 is primarily due to the increase in the amount of intan-
gible assets amortized as intangible assets increased from the
Hall Kinion acquisition in June of 2004 as well as to new capi-
tal leases for technology equipment. Capitalized software
amortization expense also decreased in 2004 due to write-offs
of obsolete software purchased in 2002. The purchases and
implementation of the new time-entry and billing software
mentioned above, will lead to increases in software amortiza-
tion in future years. We believe the implementation of this
software will enhance efficiency and productivity.

Other Expense. Other expense was $1.8 million in 2005,
$1.7 million in 2004 and $1.2 million in 2003. Other expense
consists primarily of interest on Kforce's credit facility. The
interest expense changes are primarily driven by changes in
Kforce's outstanding balance and changes in the one month
LIBOR rate which is used as the base rate in the credit facility.
The average LIBOR rates in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
3.46%, 1.54% and 1.20%, respectively. Other expense is par-
tially offset by miscellaneous income of $0.6 million in 2003
consisting primarily of legal and financial settlements.

Income Before Income Taxes. The income before income
taxes of $37.2 million in 2005, $11.5 million in 2004 and $5.5
million in 2003, is primarily the result of changes in net service
revenues and gross margin and reduced SG&A and other
expenses discussed above.

Income Taxes. The income tax provision for 2005 was
$14.8 million, the income tax benefit for 2004 was $13.5 mil-
lion and the income tax provision for 2003 was $0.4 million.
The 2005 income tax provision resulted from Kforce earning
income before income taxes of $37.2 million and Kforce's
effective tax rate of 39.9%. The 2004 income tax benefit is pri-
marily attributable to the reversal of valuation allowances of
$19.2 million, initially recorded in 2002 against all deferred tax
assets, offset by current and deferred tax expense of $5.7 mil-
lion. The 2003 income tax provision is due to the recording of
state income tax expense for which no corresponding state
tax carryforwards were available.

Net Income. Net income was $22.3 million in 2005 com-
pared to $25.0 million in 2004 and $5.1 million in 2003,
resulting from the net effects of those items discussed above.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically, we have financed our operations through cash
generated by operating activities and funds available from our
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revolving credit facilities. As highlighted in the Statements of
Cash Flows, Kforce's liquidity and available capital resources
are impacted by four key components: existing cash and
equivalents, operating activities, investing activities and
financing activities.

Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents totaled $37.1 million at the end of
2005, an increase of $36.7 million from the $0.4 million at
year-end 2004 and $23.4 million more than the $13.7 million at
year-end 2003. As further described below, during 2005,
Kforce generated $49.1 million of cash from operating activi-
ties, used $7.2 million of cash in investing activities and used
$5.2 million in financing activities.

Operating Activities

During 2005, cash flow provided by operations was approxi-
mately $49.1 million, resulting primarily from net income and
non-cash adjustments for depreciation and amortization and for
deferred income taxes, and an increase in accrued payroll costs.

At December 31, 2005, Kforce had $55.4 million in positive
working capital in addition to its $37.1 million of cash and
equivalents. Its current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was 2.5 at the end of 2005 as compared to 1.3 at the
end of 2004.

Investing Activities

During 2005, cash flow used in investing activities was
approximately $7.2 million, resulting primarily from $2.9 mil-
lion for the acquisition of Vista and $5.3 million in capital
expenditures, consisting primarily of computer software, off-
set by $1.0 million from the release of restricted cash. Kforce
expects cash and non-cash capital expenditures to remain rel-
atively constant in 2006, primarily as the result of plans to pur-
chase and implement new customer contracts management,
time-entry, billing and possibly other software. Anticipated
cash and non-cash capital expenditures in 2006 are currently
expected to be in the $10 million to $12 million range and
Kforce believes it has sufficient cash and borrowing capacity
to fund these and such other capital expenditures necessary
to operate the business.

Financing Activities

For the year 2005, cash flow used by financing activities
was approximately $5.2 million, resulting primarily from the
purchase of treasury shares of $5.9 million and the repayment
of $2.0 million of capital expenditure financing offset by pro-
ceeds of $2.1 million from the exercise of stock options and
$0.9 million in net borrowings on our bank line of credit.

Kforce periodically issues restricted stock as part of com-
pensation plans for certain members of corporate and field



management. Details regarding these issuances can be found
in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

Credit Facility

Long-term debt outstanding under the $100 million
Amended and Restated Credit Facility with a syndicate of
three banks (“the Credit Facility”) was $35.0 million and $34.1
million at the end of 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On October 28, 2005, Kforce entered into a Seventh
Amendment to the Credit Facility (the "Extended Credit
Facility”) with a syndicate led by Bank of America. Under the
Extended Credit Facility, Kforce's maximum borrowings are lim-
ited to $100 million. In addition, Kforce has the right under the
Extended Credit Facility to increase the maximum borrowings
available to $140 million under an accordion feature. Borrowings
under the Extended Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligible
accounts receivable. Under the Extended Credit Facility, Kforce
may have loans outstanding with a rate of LIBOR plus 1.25% or
Prime minus 0.25%. To the extent that Kforce has unused avail-
ability under the Extended Credit Facility, an unused line fee is
required to be paid equal to 0.25% of the average unused bal-
ance on a monthly basis. Kforce was required to pay a closing
fee of $250,000 upon entering into the Extended Credit Facility,
and is also required to pay an annual administrative fee of
$50,000. Borrowings under the Extended Credit Facility are
secured by all of the assets of Kforce. Under the Extended
Credit Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain minimum avail-
ability and fixed charge coverage ratio requirements, and is per-
mitted to make dividend distributions if borrowing availability
under the Extended Credit Facility is not less than $15,000,000
after giving effect to the distributions. Kforce has been in compli-
ance with the minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio
requirements at all times during the history of the Extended Credit
Facility. The Extended Credit Facility expires on November 3, 2010.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

In addition to the $35.0 million and $67.9 million outstand-
ing, the amounts available under the Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2005 and March 2, 2006 were $36.7 million and
$16.8 million, respectively.

On June 23, 2005, our Board of Directors increased its
authorization for open market repurchases of common stock
by $20 million to $135 million. As of December 31, 2005 and
March 2, 2006, we had repurchased approximately 20.4 million
shares for $114.9 million under this plan. Therefore, approxi-
mately $20.1 million was available under the current board
authorization as of December 31, 2005 and March 2, 2006.
Additional stock repurchases could have a material impact on
the cash flow requirements for the next twelve months.

In March, April and May of 2003, we entered into four fixed
interest rate swap contracts for a total notional amount of $22
million expiring in March and May of 2005. The contracts,
which have been classified as cash flow hedges pursuant to
SFAS 133, as amended, effectively converted $22 million of
our outstanding debt under the Credit Facility to a fixed rate
basis at an annual rate of approximately 4%, thus reducing the
impact of interest rate changes on future income. One of
these contracts expired on March 29, 2005. Subsequent to
March 29, 2005, the remaining contracts effectively converted
$12 million of our outstanding debt under the credit facility to
a fixed rate basis of approximately 4% until their expiration on
May 31, 2005. After the expiration of the remaining interest
rate swap contracts and prior to Kforce entering into the
Extended Credit Facility, Kforce's interest rate on the entire
Credit Facility returned to rates ranging from Prime to Prime
plus .75% or LIBOR plus 1.75% to LIBOR plus 3.25% pur-
suant to certain financial performance targets as set forth in
the original Amended Credit Facility.

Summarized below are Kforce's obligations and commitments to make future payments under lease agreements and debt

obligations as of December 31, 2005:

Less than More than
(In thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating leases $41,936 $ 9,724 $11,286 $ 5,178 $15,748
Capital leases 4,779 2,120 2,659 — —
Credit facility 35,000 — — 35,000 —
Deferred compensation plan liability 8,902 1,246 589 405 6,662
Other debt 1,775 995 780 — —
Total $92,392 $14,085 $15,314 $40,583 $22,410

Kforce has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan pur-
suant to which eligible highly compensated key employees
may elect to defer part of their compensation to later years.
These amounts, which are classified as other accrued liabili-
ties and other long-term liabilities, are payable upon retirement

or termination of employment. Amounts payable upon the
retirement or termination of employment may become
payable during the next five years if covered employees retire
or terminate during that time.
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The amount outstanding on our Credit Facility currently
bears interest at a rate of approximately 6.0% on $35.0 million
of the debt. At this level of $35.0 million of debt and this effec-
tive rate of 6.0% on the entire balance, for a period of one
year, interest expense would be approximately $2.1 million.

Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of cash
deposits. Kforce currently has letters of credit totaling $5,728 out-
standing for facility lease deposits, workers compensation and
property insurance obligations.

Kforce has no material, unrecorded commitments, losses,
contingencies or guarantees associated with any related parties
or unconsolidated entities.

We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents, cash flow
from operations, and borrowings under the Credit Facility will be
adequate to meet the capital expenditure and the working capi-
tal requirements of current operations for at least the next
twelve months. However, deterioration in the business environ-
ment and market conditions could negatively impact operating
results and liquidity. There is no assurance that, if operations
were to deteriorate and additional financing were to become
necessary, we will be able to obtain financing in amounts suffi-
cient to meet operating requirements or at terms which are sat-
isfactory and which allow us to remain competitive. Our
expectation that existing resources will fund capital expenditure
and working capital requirements is a forward-looking statement
that is subject to risks and uncertainties.

Actual results could differ from those indicated as a result of
a number of factors, including the use of currently available
resources for possible acquisitions and possible additional
stock repurchases.

Acquisitions and Divestitures

Kforce made acquisitions and divestitures in 2005 and 2004
which are discussed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements. In
addition, on January 31, 2006 we completed the acquisition of
PCCI Holdings, Inc., as discussed below.

PCCI Holdings, Inc.

On January 31, 2006, Kforce acquired PCCI Holdings, Inc.,
pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”) by and among Kforce, Trevose Acquisition
Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Kforce (“Merger Sub”), PCCI Holdings, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“PCCI"), H.I.G. Pinkerton, Inc., a Cayman
company, in its capacity as Representative, William D. Pinkerton
and Richard J. Quigley. Under the terms of the Merger
Agreement, Kforce acquired all of the outstanding stock of PCCI
for approximately $60,000,000 (the “Purchase Price”) payable in
cash at closing, subject to certain adjustments as provided for in
the Merger Agreement. On the closing date, Kforce placed into
escrow $6,000,000 of the total Purchase Price to secure PCCl's
indemnification obligations, and to satisfy certain adjustments to
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the Purchase Price. To the extent that escrowed funds remain
after satisfaction of PCCl's indemnification obligations and
Purchase Price adjustments, those amounts will be released to
PCCI and accounted for as Purchase Price as of the date the
proceeds are issuable from the escrow.

PCCl was a privately held company based in Trevose,
Pennsylvania that, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries
(primarily Pinkerton Computer Consultants, Inc.), produced
revenue of approximately $95 million in technology staffing
and the Federal government IT services sector over the last
12 months. Approximately 35% of that revenue was gener-
ated in the government sector. As a result of the above
acquisition, Kforce expanded its presence in technology
staffing in both the Federal government and commercial sec-
tors. Because the closing occurred in 2006, none of PCCl's
results of operations have been included in Kforce's consoli-
dated financial statements as of December 31, 2005. Kforce is
currently in the process of allocating the purchase price to the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired in conjunction
with the acquisition.

VistaRMS, Inc.

On February 1, 2005, Kforce completed the acquisition of
substantially all of the assets of VistaRMS, Inc. (“Vista"”), a pri-
vately held company based in Herndon, Virginia. Vista is
engaged in the business of providing integrated business and
information technology staffing and solutions to the commer-
cial and government sectors. The integration of the operations
of Vista into Kforce was substantially complete as of the end
of the first quarter of 2005.

Pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of
December 3, 2004, between Kforce, Vista, and the sharehold-
ers of Vista, Kforce purchased substantially all of the assets of
Vista and assumed and became responsible for certain of
Vista's liabilities at the closing of the transaction on February 1,
2005. As consideration for the assets being acquired, Kforce
issued upon the closing of the transactions 2,348,337 shares of
Kforce common stock (the “Common Stock”). The number of
shares of Common Stock issued in connection with the
Agreement was based on a price per share of Common Stock
of $10.22, which represented the average per share closing
price of the Common Stock during the period of October 20,
2004 through November 2, 2004.

On the date of closing, Kforce placed into escrow 450,000
shares of the Common Stock for the purpose of securing
Vista's indemnification obligations under the Agreement and
placed an additional 782,779 shares of the Common Stock
into escrow to satisfy potential adjustments to the purchase
price that were determined following the consummation of
the transactions contemplated by the Agreement. Following
the closing, the purchase price was reduced by approximately
$3.2 million pursuant to the terms of the Agreement to reflect



(i) the extent to which the net assets of Vista as of June 30,
2004 exceeded the net assets of Vista as of the date of the
closing of the transaction contemplated by the Agreement, (ii)
certain of Vista's accounts receivable that were being trans-
ferred to Kforce under the Agreement and that remained
uncollected 90 days following the closing of the transaction
contemplated by the Agreement, and (iii) the amount of tax
liability incurred by Kforce resulting from Vista's use of the
cash receipts and disbursements method of accounting for
computing taxable income.

At February 1, 2006, 1,809,336 shares were issued under
the terms of the Agreement, with a total addition to equity of
approximately $20.9 million and 225,000 shares remain in
escrow. Kforce also incurred approximately $455,000 in trans-
action costs, which includes approximately $179,000 of trans-
action costs paid in 2004, and assumed net liabilities of
approximately $663,000. To the extent additional shares are
issued out of escrow to Vista after purchase price contingen-
cies have been resolved, those shares will be recorded as an
addition to the purchase price.

Hall, Kinion and Associates Inc.

On June 7, 2004, Kforce acquired 100% of the outstanding
common stock of Hall, Kinion and Associates Inc. (“Hall
Kinion™) and its subsidiaries in exchange for approximately 5.7
million shares of Kforce stock. This acquisition was accounted
for using the purchase method. Hall Kinion's first quarter 2004
and full year 2003 revenues were $30.4 million and $156.9 mil-
lion, respectively. The results of Hall Kinion's operations since
the date of acquisition have been included in Kforce's consoli-
dated financial statements. Hall Kinion specialized in providing
technology and finance and accounting related talent on a tem-
porary and permanent basis to its customers primarily in the
United States. The results of the technology and finance and
accounting businesses (previously provided by Hall Kinion's
"OnStaff” group) are included in Kforce's Technology and
Finance and Accounting business segments, respectively.

As a result of this acquisition, Kforce expanded its market
presence by adding 18 offices, not including 25 offices that
have been consolidated with existing Kforce offices. The acqui-
sition also expanded Kforce's service offerings in technology
and finance and accounting in certain market segments. We
believe the integration of the operations of Hall Kinion into
Kforce is substantially complete and has had a positive effect on
revenues, net income and earnings per share beginning in the
third quarter of 2004. \We have not compiled separate results for
the former Hall Kinion operations because these operations
have been integrated into Kforce and it is not feasible to track
their results.

Details of the terms of the acquisition are included in a
Registration Statement on Form S-4 that we filed on December
24, 2003, and amended on February 9, 2004, April 13, 2004,
May 3, 2004 and May 5, 2004.

Income Tax Audits

We are also periodically subject to state and other local
income tax audits for various tax years. During 2005, an
income tax audit for the state of North Carolina was concluded
with no material adverse assessments. At December 31,
2005, an ongoing audit for which no final determination has
been made was being conducted by the state of New Jersey.
As of March 2, 2006, we do not believe the resolution of any
of these audits will have a material adverse impact on our
operations or financial condition.

Registration Statement on Form S-3

On May 24, 2002, Kforce filed a Registration Statement on
Form S-3 that allows the issuance of up to $250 million of
common stock and other equity and financial instruments for
the financing of various corporate activities to potentially
include funding for acquisitions and other business expansion
opportunities, as well as compensation arrangements. Such
filings are referred to as “Shelf Registrations.” No issuance of
securities has been made under this registration statement as
of December 31, 2004. The Shelf Registration was not used
for the shares issued in connection with the Hall Kinion or
Vista acquisitions because Shelf Registrations on Form S-3 are
not available for the registration of securities issued in busi-
ness combination transactions. There is no assurance that the
existence of the Shelf Registration will assist Kforce in regis-
tering its securities in connection with future efforts to raise
capital or for other purposes.

Management Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

The management of Kforce is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial report-
ing. Kforce's internal control system was designed to provide
reasonable assurance to Kforce's management and Board of
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems deter-
mined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

On February 20, 2006, Kforce management assessed the
effectiveness of Kforce's internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2005. In making this assessment, it used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we
believe that, as of December 31, 2005, Kforce's internal control
over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Kforce's independent registered public accounting firm,
Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit report on our
assessment of Kforce's internal control over financial reporting.
This report follows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Kforce Inc.
Tampa, Florida

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting that Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (“Kforce”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Kforce’'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of Kforce's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal con-
trol over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. \We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal con-
trol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unau-
thorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management'’s assessment that Kforce maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, Kforce maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 of Kforce and our report dated March 2, 2006
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Qubbtts Votutk (210

Tampa, Florida
March 2, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Kforce Inc.
Tampa, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (“Kforce"”) as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of
Kforce's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kforce Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the effectiveness of Kforce's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
and our report dated March 2, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
Kforce's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Kforce's internal control over
financial reporting.

bt v ok ter0

Tampa, Florida
March 2, 2006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2005 2004
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,104 $ 363
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts and fallouts of $5,099 and $6,268, respectively 99,354 90,682
Income tax refund receivable 72 606
Current deferred tax asset, net 15,793 17,180
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,236 5,162
Total current assets 155,559 113,993
Fixed assets, net 10,148 8,579
Non-current deferred tax asset, net 4,451 19,016
Other assets, net 20,248 13,416
Intangible assets, net 9,336 9,838
Goodwill 125,004 108,353
Total assets $ 324,746 $ 273,195

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 19,808 $ 22,097
Accrued payroll costs 39,332 30,321
Bank overdrafts 146 1,349
Current debt—credit facility — 34,100
Other current debt 2,885 993
Income taxes payable 849 303

Total current liabilities 63,020 89,163
Long-term debt—credit facility 35,000 —
Long-term debt—other 3,167 1,727
Other long-term liabilities 12,857 11,536

Total liabilities 114,044 102,426

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par; 15,000 shares authorized,
none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par; 250,000 shares authorized,

57,895 and 55,891 issued, respectively 579 559
Additional paid-in capital 278,486 257,315
Unamortized stock-based compensation (1,094) (2,759)
Accumulated other comprehensive income — 37
Retained earnings 39,694 17,373
Less reacquired shares at cost; 19,238 and

18,614 shares, respectively (106,963) (101,756)

Total stockholders’ equity 210,702 170,769
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 324,746 $273,195

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Net service revenues $802,265 $661,451 $495,585
Direct costs of services 542,276 457,567 341,617
Gross profit 259,989 203,834 153,968
Selling, general and administrative expenses 212,724 185,488 142,915
Depreciation and amortization 8,283 5,221 4,371
Income from operations 38,982 13,175 6,682
Other expense (income):

Interest income (199) (98) (84)

Interest expense 2,055 1,827 1,703

Other (income) expense, net (40) (28) (405)
Income before income taxes 37,166 11,474 5,468
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 14,845 (13,537) 350
Net income 22,321 25,011 5118
Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Cash flow hedges, net of taxes (37) 188 154
Comprehensive income $ 22,284 $ 25,199 $ 5,272
Earnings per share—Basic $0.58 $0.73 $0.17
Weighted average shares outstanding—Basic 38,527 34,125 30,514
Earnings per share—Diluted $0.55 $0.69 $0.16
Weighted average shares outstanding—Diluted 40,616 36,091 31,231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Common stock—shares:
Shares at beginning of period 55,891 48,903 48,544
Exercise of stock options 420 849 193
Stock issued for business acquired 1,684 5,742 —
Issuance of restricted stock — 397 166
Shares at end of period 57,895 55,891 48,903
Common stock—par value:
Balance at beginning of period $ 559 $ 489 $ 485
Exercise of stock options 4 9 2
Stock issued for business acquired 16 57 —
Issuance of restricted stock — 4 2
Balance at end of period $ 579 $ 559 $ 489
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of period $ 257,315 $ 197,660 $196,510
Exercise of stock options 2,266 4,506 872
Tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions of stock options 341 611 —
Deferred compensation plan transactions — — 228
Employee stock purchase plan 256 68 (297)
Stock issued for business acquired 18,308 51,331 —
|ssuance of restricted stock — 3,139 347
Balance at end of period $ 278,486 $ 257,315 $197,660
Deferred compensation stock obligation:
Balance at beginning of period $ — $ — $ (742)
Change in obligation — — 742
Balance at end of period $ — $ — $ —
Unamortized stock-based compensation:
Balance at beginning of period $ (2,759) $ (863) $ (894
Issuance of restricted stock, net — (3,143) (349)
Amortization of stock-based compensation 1,665 1,247 380
Balance at end of period $ (1,094) $ (2,759) $ (863)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Balance at beginning of period $ 37 $ (151) $ (305
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of taxes (37) 188 (151)
Amortization of hedged interest — — 305
Balance at end of period $ — $ 37 $ (157)
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit):
Balance at beginning of period $ 17,373 $ (7,638) $(12,756)
Net income 22,321 25,011 5,118
Balance at end of period $ 39,694 $ 17,373 $ (7,638)
Treasury stock—shares:
Shares at beginning of period 18,614 18,350 18,286
Deferred compensation plan transactions — — 177
Employee stock purchase plan (127) (121) (162)
Repurchase of common stock 751 385 49
Shares at end of period 19,238 18,614 18,350
Treasury stock—cost:
Balance at beginning of period $(101,756) $ (98,092) $(97,452)
Deferred compensation plan transactions — — (1,357)
Employee stock purchase plan 705 646 863
Repurchase of common stock (5,912) (4,310) (146)
Balance at end of period $(106,963) $(101,756) $ (98,092)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 22,321 $ 25,011 $ 5,118

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
cash provided by operating activities:

Deferred income tax provision (benefit), net 14,945 (12,789) —
Depreciation and amortization 8,283 5,221 4,371
Amortization of stock-based compensation 1,795 1,247 380
Gain on cash surrender value of Company-owned life insurance policies (546) (469) (1,469)
Deferred compensation expenses 533 404 1,226
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts on accounts receivable 38 1,846 (394)
(Gain) loss on asset sales/disposals (38) 224 74
Amortization of hedged interest — — 305
Loss on asset impairment — 498 —
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Trade and notes receivables, net 1,422 (13,090) 1,212
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,037 (458) 783
Income tax refund receivable 533 (338) 551
Other assets, net (1,956) (1,058) (560)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (3,865) (807) (2,056)
Accrued payroll costs 6,861 4,745 2,209
Bank overdrafts (1,204) (2,040) 867
Income taxes payable (41) 203 —
Other liabilities (970) (1,970) 364
Cash provided by operating activities 49,148 6,380 12,981
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (5,304) (3,646) (1,255)
Acquisition, net of cash received (2,903) (28,012) —
Release of restricted cash 964 — —
Cash proceeds from sale of assets 13 42 208
Cash used in investing activities (7,230) (31,616) (1,047)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank line of credit 157,835 241,688 34,351
Payments on bank line of credit (156,935) (229,588) (34,351)
Payment of loan financing costs (250) — —
Payment of capital expenditure financing (2,055) (421) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,140 4,515 874
Repurchases of common stock (5,912) (4,310) (146)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities (5,177) 11,884 728
Change in cash and cash equivalents 36,741 (13,352) 12,662
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 363 13,715 1,053
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 37,104 $ 363 $13,715

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except per share data)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (“Kforce”) is a provider of pro-
fessional staffing services in 71 locations in 43 markets in the
United States. Kforce provides its customers staffing services
in the following specialties: Technology, Finance and
Accounting, and Health and Life Sciences. Kforce provides
flexible staffing services on both a temporary and contract
basis and provides search services on both a contingency and
retained basis. Kforce serves clients from the Fortune 1000,
as well as local and regional, small to mid-size companies.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Kforce Inc. and its subsidiaries. References in this docu-
ment to “Kforce,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” or “us” refer
to Kforce or its subsidiaries, except where the context other-
wise requires. All material intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Kforce classifies all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Fallouts

Kforce has established a reserve for expected credit losses
and fallouts on trade receivables based on past experience
and estimates of potential future write offs. Kforce performs
ongoing analyses of factors including recent write off and
delinqguency trends, changes in economic conditions, a spe-
cific analysis of material receivable balances that are past due,
and concentration of accounts receivables among clients in
establishing this reserve. The allowance as a percentage of
gross accounts receivable was 4.9% as of December 31, 2005
and 6.5% as of December 31, 2004. No single client has a
receivable balance greater than 3.3% of the total accounts
receivable and the top ten clients represent approximately
20.2% of the total accounts receivable balance.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are carried at cost, less accumulated deprecia-
tion. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The cost of
leasehold improvements is amortized using the straight-line
method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the
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assets or the terms of the related leases, which range from
three to fifteen years.

Income Taxes

Kforce accounts for income taxes under the principles of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes.” SFAS 109 requires the asset
and liability approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of the
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. SFAS 109 requires
that unless it is “more likely than not” that a deferred tax
asset can be utilized to offset future taxes, a valuation
allowance must be recorded against that asset. The tax bene-
fits of deductions attributable to the employees’ disqualifying
dispositions of shares obtained from incentive stock options
are reflected as increases in additional paid-in capital.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Kforce, using available market information and appropriate
valuation methodologies, has determined the estimated fair
value of financial instruments. However, considerable judg-
ment is required in interpreting data to develop the estimates
of fair value. The fair values of Kforce's financial instruments
are estimated based on current market rates and instruments
with the same risk and maturities. The fair value of long-term
debt approximates its carrying value due to the variable
interest rate applicable to the debt.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” Kforce does not amortize goodwill but per-
forms an annual review to ensure that no impairment of good-
will exists. In some of Kforce's acquisitions, a portion of the
purchase price has been allocated to non-compete agree-
ments and customer lists. These assets have been capitalized
and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets. Kforce also has allocated a
portion of the purchase price of Hall Kinion to the OnStaff
trade name. This asset has been determined to have an indefinite
life and is not being amortized.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” Kforce period-
ically reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets to deter-
mine if impairment has occurred. Impairment losses, if any,
are recorded in the period identified. Significant judgment is
required to determine whether or not impairment has
occurred. The determination is made by evaluating expected
future undiscounted cash flows or the anticipated recoverabil-
ity of costs incurred and, if necessary, determining the amount
of the loss, if any, by evaluating the fair value of the assets.

Capitalized Software

Kforce purchases, and in certain cases develops, and imple-
ments new computer software to enhance the performance of
its accounting and operating systems. Kforce accounts for



direct internal and external costs subsequent to the preliminary
stage of the projects under the principles of AICPA Statement
of Position (“SOP") 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.”
Software development costs are being capitalized and classified
as other assets and amortized over the estimated useful life of
the software using the straight-line method. Direct internal
costs, such as payroll and payroll-related costs, and external
costs incurred during the development stage of each project
are capitalized and classified as capitalized software. Kforce
capitalized development stage implementation costs of
$3,134 and $976 during the years ended 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Kforce did not incur or capitalize any internally
developed software costs during 2003.

Deferred Loan Costs

Costs incurred to secure Kforce's Credit Facility were capi-
talized and are being amortized over the terms of the related
agreements using the straight-line method.

Commissions

Associates make placements and earn commissions as a
percentage of actual revenue or gross profit pursuant to a cal-
endar year basis commission plan. The amount of commis-
sions paid as a percentage of revenue or gross profit increases
as volume increases. Kforce accrues commissions for actual
revenue or gross profit at a percentage equal to the percent of
total expected commissions payable to total revenue and
gross profit for the year.

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure,” was issued in December 2002.
SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition
for a voluntary change from the intrinsic-value-based method of
recognizing stock compensation under Accounting Principles
Board (“APB") Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” to the SFAS 123 fair-value-based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. Under
the fair value method, the fair value of stock options granted to
employees is recognized as compensation over the service
period (usually the vesting period). Under the intrinsic value
method, compensation expense is recognized for options that
are in-the-money, thereby having intrinsic value, at the date of
grant. SFAS 148 also amends SFAS 123 to require more promi-
nent disclosure in interim and annual financial statements of
the effect of all stock-based compensation. Kforce continues to
apply the intrinsic-value method under APB Opinion 25 in
accounting for its plans and discloses the effect on net income
and earnings per share as if Kforce had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 148 to stock-based employee
and non-employee compensation. As of December 31, 2005,
Kforce had two stock-based compensation plans currently
under which options are outstanding, an employee incentive
stock option plan (the “Employee Incentive Stock Option
Plan”) and a non-employee director stock option plan (the
“Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan”). The Employee
Incentive Stock Option Plan and the Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan expired in March and October of 2005,
respectively. Kforce applies the recognition and measurement
principles of APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in

accounting for those plans. All options granted under those
plans have had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of the grants.

The table below illustrates the effects on Kforce's net
income and earnings per share had compensation cost for
Kforce's option plans been determined based on the fair value
at the grant dates, as prescribed by SFAS 148.

Included in the pro forma amounts below for 2004 is an
expense related to options to purchase 856 shares of common
stock for which vesting was accelerated in September 2004.
As a result of recognizing this expense during the period in
which they were accelerated, no future expense related to
these options will be incurred. These options were originally
scheduled to vest during 2005 and 2006.

In addition, in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44,
“Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock
Compensation,” the modification to accelerate the vesting of
a fixed award effectively results in the renewal for that award
if, after the modification, an employee is able to exercise the
award that, under the original terms, would have expired unex-
ercisable. Accordingly, in the event that an employee termi-
nates prior to the time that the stock options would have
vested under the original terms, Kforce would incur additional
compensation expense based upon the intrinsic value at the
time of the acceleration of vesting, reduced by any amounts
previously expensed as a result of the acceleration.

If all affected employees were to terminate their employment
prior to the applicable original vesting dates, the maximum
future expense would be approximately $3,253, with such
amount reduced to approximately $940 after scheduled vesting
dates in January 2005 have passed and to approximately $59
after scheduled vesting dates in January 2006 have passed.

Pro Forma
Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss):
As reported (b) $22,321 $25,011 $5,118

Compensation expense
(benefit) per SFAS 123, net
of related tax benefits (a)(c)

Pro forma net income (loss)

(4,359) (2,709) (3,467)
$17,962 $22,302 $ 1,651

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic:
As reported $0.58 $0.73  $0.17
Pro forma $0.47 $0.65 $0.05
Diluted:
As reported $0.55 $0.69 $0.16
Pro forma $0.45 $0.62  $0.05

(@) The pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense for the
options to purchase 856 shares of common stock that were accelerated
in September 2004 was $685. Excluding this amount from the pro forma
results above would have resulted in expense, net of tax, of $2,294 for
the year ended December 31, 2004. Pro forma net income per share—
basic would have been $0.67 and pro forma net income per share—
diluted would have been $0.63 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(b) Included in the calculation of net income is expense related to the
amortization of Kforce's restricted stock plan. Restricted stock amorti-
zation is treated the same under SFAS 123 and APB 25 and therefore
has no impact on the pro forma net income.

(c) No tax benefit has been included in the Pro Forma net income calculation
for the year ended December 31, 2003 as Kforce recorded a valuation
allowance that fully offset its net deferred tax assets as of that date.
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For purposes of determining the compensation expense per
SFAS 123, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions used for grants during the applicable
periods: dividend yield of 0.0%, risk-free interest rates of 3.9%
for options granted, a weighted average expected option term
of 4.7 years, and a volatility factor of 50%.

Self-Insurance

Kforce offers employee benefit programs, including workers
compensation and health insurance, to eligible employees, for
which Kforce is self-insured for a portion of the cost. Kforce
retains liability up to $250 for each workers compensation
accident and up to $200 annually for each health insurance
participant. Self-insurance costs are accrued using estimates
to approximate the liability for reported claims and claims
incurred but not reported.

Revenue Recognition

Net service revenues consist of search fees and flexible
billings inclusive of billable expenses, net of credits, discounts
and fallouts. Kforce recognizes flexible billings based on hours
worked by assigned personnel. Search fees are recognized
upon placement, net of an allowance for “fallouts.” Fallouts
are search placements that do not complete the contingency
period. Contingency periods are typically ninety days or less.

Revenues received as reimbursements of billable expenses
are reported gross within revenue in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force, Issue 01-14, “Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-
Pocket’ Expenses Incurred.”

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of unreal-
ized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of certain
derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting under
SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended.

Accounting for Deriviatives

SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities,” as amended, establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including cer-
tain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (col-
lectively referred to as derivatives), and for hedging activities.
[t also requires that all derivatives and hedging activities be
recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet
and be measured at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from
the changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized in net
income (loss) or recorded in other comprehensive income
(loss), and recognized in the statement of operations when the
hedged item affects earnings, depending upon the purpose of
the derivatives and whether they qualify for hedge accounting
treatment. Kforce's policy is to designate at a derivative's
inception the specific assets, liabilities, or future commit-
ments being hedged and monitor the derivative to determine
if it remains an effective hedge. Kforce does not enter into or
hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The fair
value of Kforce's interest rate swap agreements is based on
dealer quotes. In the unlikely event that the counterparty fails
to perform under the contract, Kforce bears the credit risk that
payments due to Kforce, if applicable, may not be collected.
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Earnings Per Share

Under SFAS 128, “Earnings Per Share,” basic earnings (loss)
per share is computed as earnings divided by weighted average
shares outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss) per share include the
dilutive effects of stock options and other potentially dilutive
securities such as non-vested stock grants and shares held in
escrow related to the purchase of VistaRMS, Inc. (Note 6).

Options to purchase 2,549, 2,381 and 3,421 shares of com-
mon stock were not included in the computations of diluted
earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 20083, respectively, because these options were anti-
dilutive. The dilutive effect of options to purchase 3,639, 4,081
and 2,662 shares of common stock and 305, 318 and 404
shares of restricted stock are included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The following recently issued accounting pronouncements
were effective for Kforce beginning January 1, 2004, and
management has determined that the adoption of these
standards had no material impact on Kforce's consolidated
financial statements.

e SFAS 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations,” requires entities to record the fair value of a
liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in
which it occurred.

e SFAS 145, "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and

64, Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical

Corrections,” rescinds SFAS 4, “Reporting Gains and

Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,” and an amendment

of that Statement, SFAS 64, “Extinguishments of Debt

Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” SFAS 145

also rescinds SFAS 44, " Accounting for Intangible Assets of

Motor Carriers,” and SFAS 13, “Accounting for Leases,”

eliminating an inconsistency between certain sale-lease-

back transactions.

SFAS 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or

Disposal Activities,” addresses financial accounting and

reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activi-

ties and nullifies EITF Issue 94-3, “Liability Recognition for

Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs

to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a

Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires costs associated with

exit or disposal activities to be recognized when the costs

are incurred, rather than at a date of commitment to an
exit or disposal plan.

e SFAS 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” amends and clarifies
financial accounting and reporting for derivative instru-
ments, including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives)
and for hedging activities under SFAS 133. The changes in
SFAS 149 improve financial reporting by requiring that
contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted
for similarly. In particular, SFAS 149 (1) clarifies under
what circumstances a contract with an initial net invest-
ment meets the characteristic of a derivative discussed in
paragraph 6(b) of SFAS 133, (2) clarifies when a derivative
contains a financing component, (3) amends the definition
of an underlying asset or liability to conform it to language



used in FIN 45, and (4) amends certain other existing
pronouncements.

e SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Certain Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity,”
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and
measures certain financial instruments with characteris-
tics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer
classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a
liability (or an asset in some circumstances).

SFAS 153, "Exchange of non-monetary assets,”
amends APB Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception
for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets
and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of
non-monetary assets that do not have commercial substance.
This statement is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges
occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
Kforce's consolidated financial statements.

In December of 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB") issued a revised version of SFAS 123, “Share-
Based Payment” (SFAS 123R). This statement establishes
standards for the accounting for transactions in which an
entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods and serv-
ices, but focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in
which an entity obtains employee services in share-based pay-
ment transactions. This statement supersedes APB Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its
related implementation guidance. This statement requires a
public entity to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited
exceptions). That cost is recognized over the period in which
the employee is required to provide service in exchange for
the award, which is usually the vesting period. No compensa-
tion cost is recognized for equity instruments for which
employees do not render the requisite service. This statement
is effective for Kforce as of the beginning of the first annual
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Kforce
intends to adopt SFAS 123R using the modified prospective
method, and management does not believe the adoption of
this standard will have a material impact on Kforce's consoli-
dated financial statements as all of Kforce's outstanding stock
options were fully vested as of December 31, 2005.

In May of 2005, FASB issued SFAS 154, “Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections.” This statement replaces APB Opinion 20,
“Accounting Changes,” and SFAS 3, "Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” This statement
changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of
a change in accounting principle, and applies to all voluntary
changes in accounting principle. This statement also applies to
changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the
unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include spe-
cific transition provisions. Previously, APB Opinion 20 required
that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recog-
nized by including in net income of the period of the change the
cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle.
SFAS 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’
financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it
is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or
the cumulative effect of the change. This statement is effective

for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005. Management does
not believe the adoption of this standard will have a material
impact on Kforce's consolidated financial statements.

2. FIXED ASSETS
Major classifications of fixed assets and related asset lives
are summarized as follows:

December 31, Useful Life 2005 2004
Land $ 1310 $ 1,310
Furniture and equipment 5- 7 years 5,434 5,424
Computer equipment 3- 5years 1,433 1,188
Leasehold improvements 3-15 years 4,267 3,936
Capital leases 3 years 5,837 2,248
18,281 14,106

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization 8,133 5,527
$10,148 $ 8,579

Kforce purchased fixed assets totaling $1,058 and $1,272,
and invested in assets under capital leases of $3,589 and
$2,248, during 2005 and 2004. Depreciation and amortization
expense during 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $3,035, $2,300 and
$2,640, respectively. Kforce recognized losses on the sale or
disposal of assets of $38, $224 and $74 for the years ended
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Land consists of a parcel of property adjacent to the site of
the corporate headquarters building.

3. INCOME TAXES
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the
following:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Current:

Federal $ (223) $ 265 $ —

State 123 (1,013) 350
Deferred 14,945 6,461 2,200
Increase (decrease) in

valuation allowance —  (19,250) (2,200)

$14,845 $(13,637) $ 350

The provision (benefit) for income taxes shown above varied
from the statutory federal income tax rates for those periods
as follows:

Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003
Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes,

net of federal tax effect 4.6 (2.4) 6.4
Non-deductible compensation — 10.6 6.2
Non-deductible meals

and entertainment 0.1 2.6 41
Alternative Minimum Tax (0.6) 2.3 —
Other 0.8 1.7 (4.3)
Deferred tax asset

valuation allowance — (167.8) (41.0)
Effective tax rate 39.9% (118.0)% 6.4%
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of
the following:

December 31, 2005 2004
Deferred taxes, current:
Assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,144 $ 3,145
Accrued liabilities 2,539 3,812
Federal net operating
loss carryforward 10,628 9,001
State net operating
loss carryforward 1,656 1,222
Other assets 305 —
17,272 17,180
Liabilities (595) —
Current deferred tax asset,
net of current deferred tax liabilities 16,677 17,180
Valuation allowance (884) —
Net current deferred tax asset $15,793 $17,180
Deferred taxes, non-current:
Assets
Deferred compensation $ 3,742 $ 3,686
Federal net operating
loss carryforward 5,449 9,587
State net operating
loss carryforward 671 5,063
Amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets — 4,486
Other 873 304
10,735 23,126
Liabilities
Depreciation of fixed assets (2,802) (446)
Amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets (3,000) —
(5,802) (446)
Non-current deferred tax asset,
net of non-current deferred
tax liabilities 4,933 22,680
Valuation allowance (482) (3,664)
Net non-current deferred tax asset $ 4,451 $19,016

At December 31, 2005, Kforce had federal net operating loss
carryforwards (“NOLs") of approximately $45,934 related to
net operating losses in 2002 and 2004 and the recording of Hall
Kinion federal NOLs, both of which expire in varying amounts
through 2024. Further, Kforce has approximately $55,101 of
state tax NOLs at December 31, 2005, which will be carried
forward to be offset against future state taxable income. The
state tax NOLs expire in varying amounts through 2022.

Kforce incurred NOLs for both federal and state income tax
purposes in 2004 and in years prior to 2003. For accounting
purposes, the estimated tax effects of such NOLs, plus or net
of timing differences, result in current and non-current deferred
tax assets. However, a determination must be made that it is
“more likely than not” that the NOLs will be utilized for tax pur-
poses, or valuation allowances must be established to offset
such assets. At December 31, 2002, a “more likely than not”
conclusion could not be reached, and the deferred tax assets
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were fully reserved. Kforce had net income during 2003, and
portions of the deferred tax assets were recognized by reduc-
ing such assets and the related valuation allowances by
$2,200, instead of providing any 2003 income tax expense
other than certain state tax expense for which corresponding
state tax carryforwards were not available. In 2004, Kforce rec-
ognized a tax benefit of $13,537, which consisted of the rever-
sal of the valuation allowance totaling $19,250, net of current
and deferred tax expense of $5,713. Kforce continues to carry
a $1,366 valuation allowance at December 31, 2005, offsetting
federal and state NOL carryforwards for which a “more likely
than not” conclusion for tax purposes could not be reached.
$474 of this valuation allowance relates to net deferred tax
assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Hall
Kinion. Therefore, if this portion of the valuation allowance is
reversed at a future date, the related tax benefit will be
recorded as an offset to goodwill previously recognized in con-
junction with this acquisition. Also in 2004, Kforce reversed
$21,841 of valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets
recorded in conjunction with the Hall Kinion acquisition. The
reversal of these valuation allowances has been recorded as an
offset to Goodwill recognized in this acquisition.

Kforce is periodically subject to U.S. Internal Revenue
Service audits for various tax years. Kforce is also periodically
subject to state and other local income tax audits for various
tax years. At December 31, 2005, one state income tax audit
for which no final determination has been made was in
progress. During 2005, an income tax audit for a state was
concluded with no material adverse assessments.

4. OTHER ASSETS

December 31, 2005 2004
Cash surrender value of life
insurance policies (Note 9) $10,831 $ 8,452
Capitalized software,
net of amortization 7,592 3,009
Prepaid rent—headquarters,
net of amortization 1,073 1,184
Deferred merger and acquisition costs 198 178
Deferred loan costs,
net of amortization 242 279
Cash flow hedge asset (Note 7) —_ 37
Other non-current assets 312 277
$20,248 $13,416

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies relates to
policies maintained by Kforce that could be used to fund
obligations under the Deferred Compensation Plan (Note 9).

Kforce purchased capitalized software for $2,911 and $2,289
during 2005 and 2004, respectively. Accumulated amortization
on capitalized software was $4,508 and $3,081 as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition, Kforce
capitalized costs related to software developed for internal use
totaling $3,134 and $976 in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Amortization expense on capitalized software during 2005,
2004 and 2003 was $1,459, $750 and $976, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” Kforce periodically reviews
the carrying value of long-lived assets to determine if impairment



has occurred. During the year ended December 31, 2004, it was
determined that time entry software purchased but not imple-
mented by Kforce could not be customized to meet Kforce's
requirements. Based on this determination Kforce recognized an
impairment loss of $498 which included $305 in capital software
costs and $193 of maintenance costs. For the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2003, it was determined that there
were no impairments. The impairment losses are recorded as a
component of selling, general and administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss).

As part of the agreement with the landlord of Kforce's cor-
porate headquarters, Kforce was required to prepay lease
costs relating to building upgrades above a base amount. This
amount is being amortized over the 15 year term of the lease.

Deferred merger and acquisition costs of $198 and $178
were capitalized in connection with Kforce's agreement to
acquire PCCl as of December 31, 2005 (Note 16) and asset
purchase agreement with VistaRMS, Inc. as of December 31,
2004 (Note 6), respectively. The cost deferred and capitalized
as of December 31, 2005 will be recorded as additional pur-
chase price upon the close of the transaction with PCCI. The
deferred merger and acquisition costs of $178 as of
December 31, 2004 were capitalized and are recorded as part
of the purchase price of VistaRMS, Inc.

Accumulated amortization on deferred loan costs was $8
and $2,221 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
In November 2005, Kforce signed the Seventh Amendment to
our Credit Facility. As a result, the fully amortized expense
relating to previous agreements was written off. Amortization
expense on deferred loan costs was $288, $335 and $335 in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS 142, "“Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” Kforce completed annual tests for good-
will impairment as required and found no impairment existed
at December 31, 2005, 2004 or 2003.

In accordance with SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,”
Kforce assigned, based on a valuation analysis performed by
an independent firm, $2,800 to customer list intangible assets
and $200 related to non-compete agreements in the acquisi-
tion of Vista (Note 6). In 2004, Kforce assigned, based on a val-
uation analysis performed by an independent firm, $10,000 to
customer list intangible assets and $870 related to the OnStaff
trade name in the acquisition of Hall Kinion (Note 6). The
remaining value of intangible assets relates to customer lists
and non-compete agreements acquired during 2001 that are
being amortized over four years. Accumulated amortization on
intangible assets from acquisitions was $6,211 and $2,709 as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Amortization
expense on intangible assets from acquisitions for 2005, 2004
and 2003 was $3,502, $1,836 and $419, respectively. For
existing intangible assets from acquisitions, amortization
expense for 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 will be $3,258,
$3,258, $1,841, $105 and $4, respectively.

6. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005
VistaRMS, Inc.

On February 1, 2005, Kforce completed the acquisition of
substantially all of the assets of VistaRMS, Inc. (“Vista”), a
privately-held company based in Herndon, Virginia, in
exchange for 2,348 shares of Kforce common stock. This
transaction was accounted for using the purchase method.
The results of Vista's operations since the date of acquisition
have been included in Kforce's consolidated financial state-
ments. Vista had produced revenue of approximately $50,000 in
technology staffing over the 12 months prior to the acquisition
with approximately 40% of that revenue in the Federal govern-
ment sector. As a result of this acquisition, Kforce has been able
to expand its presence in the Federal government sector.

As consideration for the purchase, Kforce issued 2,348 shares
of Kforce stock of which 1,233 were held in escrow under the
terms of the agreement. The Kforce stock was valued at a price
of $11.57 per share, the average market price of the shares
from the period 5 days before and after the date the agreement
was signed and announced. At December 31, 2005, 1,584
shares were issued under the terms of the agreement, with a
total addition to equity of $18,324, and 450 shares remained
in escrow. Kforce also incurred $455 in transaction costs,
which includes $179 of transaction costs paid in 2004, and
assumed net liabilities of $663. To the extent additional shares
are issued out of escrow to Vista after purchase price contin-
gencies have been resolved, those shares will be recorded as
an addition to the purchase price.

The following table summarizes the total purchase price, net
assets acquired and intangible assets recorded in conjunction
with the acquisition:

Equity issued $18,324
Transaction costs 455
Total purchase price $18,779
Goodwill $16,442
Customer lists 2,800
Non-compete agreements 200
Net liabilities acquired (663)
Total purchase price $18,779

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

Accounts receivable $10,031
Other assets 75
Total assets acquired 10,106
Current liabilities 5,347
Debt 2,467
Long-term liabilities 2,955
Total liabilities assumed 10,769
Net liabilities assumed $ 663

Included in current and long-term liabilities above are a net
deferred tax liability of $1,200 and a federal tax liability of $2,344
that were acquired in conjunction with the acquisition.
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Based on an analysis completed in accordance with
SFAS 141, $2,800 of the excess purchase price has been
allocated to customer lists and contracts that are being
amortized over a weighted average useful life of 4 years, and
$200 of the excess purchase price has been allocated to non-
compete agreements that are being amortized over a
weighted average useful life of 5 years.

The $16,442 of remaining excess purchase price has been
assigned to goodwill. This goodwill has been allocated to the
Technology business segment. This goodwill is not deductible
for tax purposes.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
Hall, Kinion & Associates Inc.

On June 7, 2004, Kforce acquired 100% of the outstanding
common stock of Hall, Kinion and Associates Inc. and its sub-
sidiaries (“Hall Kinion™). This transaction was accounted for
using the purchase method. The results of Hall Kinion’s oper-
ations since the date of acquisition have been included in
Kforce's consolidated financial statements. Hall Kinion special-
ized in providing technology and finance and accounting
related talent on a temporary and permanent basis to its cus-
tomers primarily in the United States. As a result of this acqui-
sition, Kforce expanded its market presence by adding 18
offices, not including those offices already combined with
existing Kforce offices. The acquisition also expanded Kforce's
service offerings in technology and finance and accounting in
certain market segments.

As consideration for the purchase of the common stock,
Kforce issued 5,742 shares of Kforce stock at a price of $8.95
a share, the market price of the shares on the date of issuance,
with a total addition to equity of $51,388. Kforce also incurred
$13,899 in transaction costs, which includes approximately
$1,459 of transaction costs paid in 2003. Additionally, Kforce
assumed net assets of $10,152 and bought out potential future
earnouts related to OnStaff for $2,500. Kforce recorded an
adjustment to the assets acquired of $209 in 2005 due to
changes to the net deferred tax assets realized in 2005 increas-
ing goodwill by $209. The following table summarizes the total
purchase price, net assets acquired and intangible assets
recorded in conjunction with the acquisition:

Equity issued $51,388
Transaction costs 13,899
Future earnouts—OnStaff 2,500
Total purchase price $67,787
Goodwill $46,765
Customer lists 10,000
Trade name 870
Net assets acquired 10,152
Total purchase price $67,787
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair val-
ues of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.

Cash $ 2,827
Other current assets 19,895
Furniture and equipment 586
Other assets 21,657
Total assets acquired 44,965
Current liabilities 14,233
Long-term debt 10,638
Other long-term liabilities 9,942
Total liabilities assumed 34,813
Net assets acquired $10,152

Included in other current assets and other assets above is
a net deferred tax asset of $23,266 that was acquired in
conjunction with the acquisition.

Based on an analysis completed in accordance with SFAS 141,
“Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141"), $10,000 of the excess
purchase price was allocated to acquired intangible assets and is
included in intangible assets, net in the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheet. Such value is assigned to customer lists and
contracts that are amortized over a weighted average useful life
of 4 years. An additional $870 was assigned to the OnStaff trade
name, which is also included in intangible assets, net, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. This asset has been
determined to have an indefinite life and is not being amortized.

The $46,765 of remaining excess purchase price was
assigned to goodwill. This goodwill has been allocated to the
Technology and Finance and Accounting business segments.
This goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial
information for Kforce gives effect to the acquisition of Vista
and Hall Kinion as if they had occurred on January 1, 2003.
These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for
comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative
of the results of operations that actually would have resulted
had the acquisitions occurred on the date indicated, or that
may result in the future.

2005 2004 2003

$806,713 $772,681 $690,809
$ 22,403 $ 21,379 $(13,149)

Revenues
Net income (loss)

Basic income (loss) per share $0.58 $0.55 $(0.34)
Diluted income (loss) per share $0.55 $0.53 $(0.34)
Basic shares outstanding 38,762 38,637 38,290
Diluted shares outstanding 40,850 40,512 38,290



7. CREDIT FACILITY

On October 28, 2005, Kforce entered into a Seventh
Amendment to the Credit Facility (the "Extended Credit
Facility”) with a syndicate led by Bank of America. Under the
Extended Credit Facility, Kforce's maximum borrowings are
limited to $100,000. In addition, Kforce has the right under the
Extended Credit Facility to increase the maximum borrowings
available to $140,000 under an accordion feature. Borrowings
under the Extended Credit Facility are limited to 85% of eligi-
ble accounts receivable. Under the Extended Credit Facility,
Kforce may have loans outstanding with a rate of LIBOR plus
1.25% or Prime minus 0.25%. To the extent that Kforce has
unused availability under the Extended Credit Facility, an
unused line fee is required to be paid equal to 0.25% of the
average unused balance on a monthly basis. Kforce was
required to pay a closing fee of $250 upon entering into the
Extended Credit Facility, and is also required to pay an annual
administrative fee of $50. Borrowings under the Extended
Credit Facility are secured by all of the assets of Kforce. Under
the Extended Credit Facility, Kforce is required to meet certain
minimum availability and fixed charge coverage ratio require-
ments, and is permitted to make dividend distributions if bor-
rowing availability under the Extended Credit Facility is not
less than $15,000 after giving effect to the distributions.
Kforce has been in compliance with the minimum availability
and fixed charge coverage ratio requirements at all times dur-
ing the history of the Extended Credit Facility. The Extended
Credit Facility expires on November 3, 2010.

In March, April and May of 2003, we entered into four fixed
interest rate swap contracts for a total notional amount of
$22,000 expiring in March and May of 2005. The contracts,
which have been classified as cash flow hedges pursuant to
SFAS 133, as amended, effectively converted $22,000 of our
outstanding debt under the Credit Facility to a fixed rate basis
at an annual rate of approximately 4%, thus reducing the
impact of interest rate changes on future income. One of
these contracts expired on March 29, 2005. Subsequent to
March 29, 2005, the remaining contracts effectively converted
$12,000 of our outstanding debt under the credit facility to a
fixed rate basis of approximately 4% until their expiration on
May 31, 2005. After the expiration of the remaining interest
rate swap contracts and prior to Kforce entering into the
Extended Credit Facility, Kforce's interest rate on the entire
Credit Facility returned to rates ranging from Prime to Prime
plus .75% or LIBOR plus 1.75% to LIBOR plus 3.25% pur-
suant to certain financial performance targets as set forth in
the original Amended Credit Facility.

On June 23, 2005, our Board of Directors increased its
authorization for open market repurchases of common stock
by $20,000 to $135,000. At December 31, 2005, we had repur-
chased 20,368 shares for $114,857 under this plan. 751 shares
have been repurchased during 2005 for $5,912. Therefore,
$20,143 was available under the current board authorization as
of December 31, 2005. Additional stock repurchases could
have a material impact on the cash flow requirements for the
next twelve months.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility were $35,000 and
$34,100 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

8. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

December 31, 2005 2004
Deferred compensation plan liability (Note 9) $ 8,902 $ 8,278
Straight-line rent accrual 1,864 1,659
Corporate income tax payable—

Federal non-current 1,172 —
Accrued rent, long-term 919 1,699

$12,857 $11,536

Kforce has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan pur-
suant to which eligible Kforce management and highly com-
pensated key employees may elect to defer part of their
compensation to later years. These amounts, which are classi-
fied as other long-term liabilities, are payable upon retirement
or termination of employment.

Kforce has accrued the net present value of rent for the min-
imum required lease payments on vacant properties and the
net rent payable after sublease payments on sublet prop-
erties, at interest rates of 4% to 9%. In addition to the
non-current amounts of $919 and $1,699 for 2005 and
2004 included above, respectively, net lease payments
scheduled within the next 12 months of $1,016 and $2,431 for
2005 and 2004, respectively, have been included in accounts
payable and other current liabilities.

Future minimum lease payments and receipts for acceler-
ated leases and subleases under non-cancelable operating
leases are summarized as follows:

2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter
Lease payments $1,944 $1,631 $721 $— $—
Sublease receivables 928 875 425 — —
Net leases payable  $1,016 $ 756 $296 $— $—

Expenses of $64, $684 and $272 were recognized during
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, to record accrued rent
related to vacated or subleased properties. The straight-lining
of escalating rent payments relates primarily to Kforce's corpo-
rate headquarters facility lease (Note 12). These expenses are
included in SG&A.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401(k) Savings Plan

Kforce has a qualified defined contribution 401(k) plan cover-
ing substantially all employees. Employer matching contribu-
tions are discretionary and are funded annually as approved by
the Board of Directors. Kforce has accrued a match of $813 for
the plan year ended December 31, 2005. A match of $643
was made in 2005 for the plan year ended December 31,
2004. A match of $475 was made in 2004 for the plan year
ended December 31, 2003. Assets of this plan are held in trust
for the sole benefit of employees.

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Plan held 660,
862 and 981 shares, respectively, of Kforce's stock, represent-
ing approximately 1.71%, 2.31% and 3.21%, respectively, of
Kforce's outstanding shares.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Kforce has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows
all employees to purchase stock at a 15% discount from the
lower of the market price of Kforce's common stock at the
beginning or end of the six month purchase period and with-
out commissions on the purchases. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plan as of the next plan enroliment date fol-
lowing their date of hire. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, respec-
tively, Kforce issued 128, 121 and 162 shares of common
stock, at an average purchase price of $7.57, $6.18 and $3.49
per share, pursuant to the plan. These shares were transferred
to the plan from Kforce's treasury stock. Of the 128 shares
issued in 2005, Kforce issued 55 of the shares at an average
price of $7.96 and 73 shares at an average price of $7.19. Of
the 121 shares issued in 2004, Kforce issued 69 of the shares
at an average price of $4.34 and 52 shares at an average price
of $8.02. Of the 162 shares issued in 2003, Kforce issued 74
of the shares at an average price of $3.38 and 88 shares at an
average price of $3.59. In January 2006, Kforce issued 104
shares at an average price of $7.21, related to employee con-
tributions made during the second half of 2005. Effective
January 1, 2006, Kforce's Employee Stock Purchase Plan was
revised to reduce the discount on the purchase of shares from
15% to 5%, and to eliminate the look back period.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Kforce has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pur-
suant to which eligible management and highly compensated
key employees, as defined by IRS regulations, may elect to
defer part of their compensation to later years. These amounts
are classified as accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
if due to be paid within the next year or as other long-term lia-
bilities if due to be paid out after the next year or upon retire-
ment or termination of employment. At December 31, 2005
and 2004, amounts included in accounts payable and other

accrued liabilities related to the deferred compensation plan
totaled $1,246 and $966, respectively. Amounts included in
other long-term liabilities related to the deferred compensa-
tion plan totaled $8,902 and $8,278 as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Kforce has insured the lives of the par-
ticipants in the deferred compensation plan to assist in the
funding of the deferred compensation liability. The cash sur-
render value of these Kforce-owned life insurance policies,
$10,831 and $8,452 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively, are classified as other assets (Note 4). Compensation
expense of $700, $731 and $1,375 was recognized for the
plan for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Kforce has accrued a discretionary matching con-
tribution of $140, 10 percent of contributions, for the plan year
ended December 31, 2005. A match of $161 was made by
Kforce in 2005 for the plan year ended December 31, 2004. A
match of $120 was made by Kforce in 2004 for the plan year
ended December 31, 2003.

10. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

In 1994, Kforce established the Employee Incentive Stock
Option Plan that allows the issuance of Incentive Stock
Options. The Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan was sub-
sequently amended in 1996 to allow for the issuance of
Nonqualified Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and
Restricted Stock. The number of shares of common stock that
may be issued under the plan was increased from 6,000 at
inception to 12,000 in 2001. The Employee Incentive Stock
Option Plan expired in March of 2005.

During 1995, Kforce established the Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan, which authorized the issuance to non-
employee directors of options to purchase common stock.
The maximum number of shares of common stock that can be
issued under this plan is 400. The Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan expired in October of 2005.

A summary of Kforce's stock option and restricted stock activity is as follows:

Non- Weighted Weighted
Employee Employee Average Average
Incentive Director Exercise Fair Value
Stock Option  Stock Option Price Per  of Options
Plan Plan Total Share Granted
Outstanding as of December 31, 2002 5,869 319 6,188 $ 8.62
Granted 907 — 907 $ 4.14 $1.96
Exercised (359) — (359) $ 4.37
Forfeited (248) — (248) $10.69
Outstanding as of December 31, 2003 6,169 319 6,488 $ 8.05
Granted 1,605 — 1,605 $ 8.19 $4.78
Exercised (1,246) — (1,246) $ 4.94
Forfeited (67) — (67) $ 9.90
Outstanding as of December 31, 2004 6,461 319 6,780 $ 8.63
Granted 390 — 390 $11.00 $4.93
Exercised (420) — (420) $ 5.10
Forfeited (257) — (257) $10.97
Outstanding as of December 31, 2005 6,174 319 6,493 $ 8.85
Exercisable at December 31:
2003 3,972 319 4,291
2004 5,457 319 5,776
2005 6,174 319 6,493

32 KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



On September 9, 2004, the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors of Kforce accelerated stock options for
all current employees that would otherwise have been
unvested on January 1, 2005. Options to purchase a total of
855,662 shares of Kforce's common stock were accelerated.
These options were held by fifteen employees, including
options to purchase an aggregate of 748,162 shares of
Kforce's common stock held by six Executive Officers.

Effective December 22, 2005, the former Chief Marketing
Officer ceased being employed by Kforce. Kforce expects the

other affected employees to continue to provide services
through their applicable original vesting dates; therefore, the
only expense recorded as a result of the above acceleration and
subsequent termination of employment was $130 in December
2005. If the remaining affected employees were to terminate
their employment prior to the applicable original vesting dates,
the maximum future expense would be approximately $751
with such amount being reduced to approximately $59 after the
scheduled vesting dates in January 2006 passed.

Options expire at the end of ten years from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes information about employee and director stock options:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted
Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Average
December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices 2005 (Shares) Life (Years) Price 2005 (Shares) Price
$ 0.000—$ 3.150 586 7.8 $ 1.38 288 $ 2.82
$ 3.151—% 6.300 1,661 5.6 $ 4.59 1,654 $ 4.58
$ 6.301—$ 9.450 1,694 4.8 $ 8.01 1,694 $ 8.01
$ 9.451—%$12.600 1,209 7.5 $11.038 1,209 $11.03
$12.601—$15.750 1,040 3.8 $14.29 1,040 $14.29
$15.751—%$18.900 2 1.9 $18.06 2 $18.06
$18.901—%$22.050 1 1.8 $20.62 1 $20.62
$22.051—%$25.200 213 2.1 $22.37 213 $22.37
$25.201—$28.350 87 2.3 $27.81 87 $27.81
6,493 5.5 $ 8.85 6,188 $ 9.28

The following restricted stock grants are included in the
Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan in the above table
detailing grants, exercises and forfeitures. In 2001, Kforce
granted approximately 194 shares of stock that was restricted
as to sale, to certain members of management, not including
the Chief Executive Officer, in lieu of a cash bonus.

In January 2002, Kforce issued 223 shares of restricted
stock to certain members of senior management and other
employees in exchange for voluntarily reducing their 2002
salary and cash bonus potential. These shares vested over a
five-year period with an acceleration clause if certain Kforce
common stock price thresholds were met. During 2003 and
2002, $221 and $212, respectively, were charged to compen-
sation expense for the straight-line amortization of vesting
over the five-year period. On January 5, 2004, Kforce common
stock closed at a price level that fully satisfied the acceleration
clause for the 2002 shares and all of such restricted stock
thereby vested. Because Kforce had been amortizing the
value of such restricted stock on a straight-line basis over the
five-year period, and the stock price threshold had not been
met on or prior to December 31, 2003, Kforce was required to
record the unamortized balance of $673 as compensation
expense in the period when the stock price threshold was
achieved, which was the first quarter of 2004.

In February 2003, Kforce granted 192 shares of restricted
stock to certain members of senior management as a compo-
nent of compensation. The shares, which were originally
scheduled to vest in February of 2005, were accelerated by
Kforce on November 30, 2004. During 2003 and 2004, Kforce
recognized $136 and $163, respectively, of compensation
expense for the straight-line amortization of the vesting over
two years. Kforce recognized an additional $27 of expense in
2004 due to the acceleration.

In January 2004, Kforce granted 75 shares, net of 13 shares
which were forfeited, of restricted stock to certain members of
senior management as a component of compensation. Also, in
December 2004, Kforce granted 223 shares of restricted stock
to certain members of senior management as a component of
compensation. Kforce recognizes compensation expense
using straight-line amortization over the vesting period of two
years. Kforce recognized $383 of compensation in relation to
these grants for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Kforce recognized $1,665 of compensation in relation to
these grants for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Tax benefits resulting from disqualifying dispositions of
shares acquired under Kforce's Employee Incentive Stock
Option Plan were $341, $611 and $0 in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. These tax benefits have been credited to
additional paid-in-capital in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

11. SEVERANCE COSTS

In 2005, Kforce incurred compensation expense of $1,106
for severance costs upon the termination of a named officer.
These costs are a component of SG&A in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

Kforce leases space and operating assets under operating
and capital leases expiring at various dates, with some leases
cancelable upon 30 to 90 days notice. The leases require pay-
ment of taxes, insurance and maintenance costs in addition to
rental payments.
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Future minimum lease payments, inclusive of accelerated lease payments (Note 8), under non-cancelable capital and operating

leases are summarized as follows:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter
Capital Leases
Present values of payments $ 1,901 $1,719 $ 669 $ — $ — $ —
Interest 219 177 94 — — —
Cap Lease Payments 2,120 1,896 763 — — —
Operating Leases
Facilities 8,591 6,500 4,206 2,623 2,495 15,748
Equipment 774 309 139 1 — —
Furniture 359 67 66 57 1 —
Total Operating Leases 9,724 6,876 4,411 2,681 2,496 15,748
Total Leases $11,844 $8,772 $5,174 $2,681 $2,496 $15,748

Kforce acquired $3,589 and $2,247 of computer equipment
under capital leases in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Capital
lease payments made in 2005 totaled $1,581, inclusive of
imputed interest of $260. Interest on capital leases is calculated
using an interest rate of 9%.

Rental expense under operating leases was $10,758,
$13,195 and $14,784 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

On September 14, 2001, Kforce executed an agreement for
lease of its new headquarters and consolidation of its Tampa
operations. Kforce has classified the lease as an operating
lease. Significant terms included the prepayment of rent in the
amount of $2,200. The prepayment is being amortized over
the 15-year term of the lease. Kforce is required to make min-
imum annual lease payments escalating from approximately
$1,929 to $2,949, which are included in the above future min-
imum lease payments. $1,901 and $2,388, respectively,
related to the present value of future minimum lease pay-
ments on capital leases, are included in other current debt and
long-term debt—other in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005.

Other Financing Commitments

Kforce entered into financing agreements related to the pur-
chase of capitalized software valued at $1,799 and $893 during
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Future payments under the agreements are $994 and $780,
inclusive of interest of $10 and $1 for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Payments under
the agreements totaled $754 inclusive of $20 of interest in
2005. $984 and $779, respectively, related to the present
value of future payments under these agreements, are
included in other current debt and long-term debt—other in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2005.

Letters of Credit

Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of
cash deposits. Kforce currently has letters of credit outstanding
for workers compensation and property insurance totaling $1,272
and for facility lease deposits totaling approximately $4,456.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of its business, Kforce is, from time to
time, threatened with or named as a defendant in various lawsuits,
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including discrimination, harassment and other similar allega-
tions. Kforce maintains insurance in such amounts and with
such coverage and deductibles as management believes is rea-
sonable. The principal risks that Kforce insures against are
workers' compensation, personal injury, bodily injury, property
damage, professional malpractice, errors and omissions,
employment practices liability and fidelity losses. Kforce is not
aware of any litigation that would reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or
financial condition.

Employment Agreements

Kforce has entered into employment agreements with cer-
tain executive officers and managers that provide for mini-
mum compensation, salary and continuation of certain
benefits for a six-month to three-year period under certain cir-
cumstances. The agreements also provide for a payment of
one to three times their annual salary and one half to three
times their average annual bonus if a change in control (as
defined by the agreements) of Kforce occurs and include a
covenant against competition with Kforce that extends for one
year after termination for any reason. Kforce's liability at
December 31, 2005 would have been approximately $25,618
in the event of a change in control or $18,076 if all of the
employees under contract were to be terminated by Kforce
without good cause (as defined) under these contracts.

13. SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Kforce reports segment information in accordance with SFAS
131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” SFAS 131 requires a management approach in
determining reportable segments of an organization. The man-
agement approach designates the internal organization that is
used by management for making operation decisions and
addressing performance as the source of determining Kforce's
reportable segments. Kforce's internal reporting follows its
three functional service offerings: Technology, Finance and
Accounting, and Health and Life Sciences. Kforce also reports
Flexible billings and Search fees separately by segment.

Historically, and through December 31, 2005, Kforce has
generated only sales and gross profit information on a func-
tional basis. As such, asset information by segment is not dis-
closed. Substantially all operations and long-lived assets are
located in the United States.



Information concerning operations in these segments of business is as follows:

Finance and Health and
Technology Accounting Life Sciences Total
2005
Net service revenues
Flexible billings $352,743 $211,873 $182,775 $747,391
Search fees 18,037 31,834 5,003 54,874
Total revenue $370,780 $243,707 $187,778 $802,265
Gross profit $109,856 $ 93,310 $ 56,823 $259,989
2004
Net service revenues
Flexible billings $294,598 $169,411 $156,071 $620,080
Search fees 11,397 26,058 3,916 41,371
Total revenue $305,995 $195,469 $159,987 $661,451
Gross profit $ 84,513 $ 73,263 $ 46,108 $203,884
2003
Net service revenues
Flexible billings. $216,609 $103,630 $144,972 $465,211
Search fees 7,162 19,157 4,055 30,374
Total revenue $223,771 $122,787 $149,027 $495,585
Gross profit $ 61,646 $ 48,586 $ 43,736 $153,968

14. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2005
Net service revenues $192,900 $198,470 $207,293 $203,602
Gross profit 60,028 64,064 68,389 67,508
Net income 3,079 5,669 6,713 6,860
Net earnings per share—basic $0.08 $0.15 $0.17 $0.18
Net earnings per share—diluted $0.08 $0.14 $0.17 $0.17
2004
Net service revenues $130,208 $152,162 $188,862 $190,219
Gross profit 38,708 47,261 57,875 60,040
Net income 1,067 251 6,047 17,646
Net earnings per share—basic $0.03 $0.01 $0.16 $0.48
Net earnings per share—diluted $0.03 $0.01 $0.16 $0.45

$12,636 of net income in the fourth quarter of 2004 relates to net tax benefit recorded in that quarter. See Note 3 for further
discussion.

15. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Supplemental cash flow information is as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Income taxes $ (29) $ (399) $ (441)
Interest, net 1,888 1,841 1,314
Non-Cash Transaction Information:
Cash flow hedges, net of taxes (37) 188 151
Tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions of stock options 341 611 —
Common Stock Transactions:
Deferred compensation plan transactions — — 80
Employee stock purchase plan (961) 714 566
Issuance of stock in an acquisition 18,324 51,388 —
Restricted stock issued or assigned in
lieu of compensation, net of forfeitures — 3,143 349
Software acquired under financing agreement 1,799 893 —
Equipment acquired under capital lease 3,589 2,247 —
Non-cash gain on sale of Board Network 74 — —
Cash used in connection with acquisition, net:
Transaction costs $ 277 $12,441 $ —
Payment of acquired business bank line of credit 2,467 10,638 —
Payment of 2003 OnStaff earnout — 4,210 —
Buyout of future OnStaff earnout — 2,500 —
Payment of acquired business long-term liability — 1,050 —
Cash received in acquisition — (2,827) —
Transaction costs—Hall Kinion tax adjustments 58 —
Cash over draft received in acquisition 101 — —
$ 2,903 $28,012 $ —
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 31, 2006, Kforce acquired PCCI Holdings, Inc.,
pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”) by and among Kforce, Trevose Acquisition
Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Kforce (“Merger Sub”), PCCI Holdings, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“PCCI"), H.I.G. Pinkerton, Inc., a
Cayman company, in its capacity as Representative, William D.
Pinkerton and Richard J. Quigley. Under the terms of the
Merger Agreement, Kforce acquired all of the outstanding
stock of PCCI for approximately $60,000 (the "Purchase
Price”) paid in cash at closing, subject to certain adjustments
as provided for in the Merger Agreement. On the closing
date, Kforce placed into escrow $6,000 of the total Purchase
Price to secure PCCl's indemnification obligations, and to sat-
isfy certain adjustments to the Purchase Price. To the extent
that escrowed funds remain after satisfaction of PCCl's
indemnification obligations and Purchase Price adjustments,

those amounts will be released to PCCl and accounted for as
Purchase Price as of the date the proceeds are issuable from
the escrow.

PCCI was a privately held company based in Trevose,
Pennsylvania that, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries
(primarily Pinkerton Computer Consultants, Inc.), produced
revenue of approximately $95,000 in technology staffing and
the Federal government IT services sector over the last 12
months. Approximately 35% of that revenue was generated
in the government sector. As a result of the above acquisi-
tion, Kforce expanded its presence in technology staffing in
both the Federal government and commercial sectors.
Because the closing occurred in 2006, none of PCCl's results
of operations have been included in Kforce's consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2005. Kforce is cur-
rently in the process of allocating the purchase price to the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired in conjunction
with the acquisition.

MARKET FOR KFORCE COMMON EQUITY AND

RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ National Market tier of The NASDAQ Stock Market®", under the symbol “KFRC."”
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low closing sale prices for our common stock, as
reported on the NASDAQ National Market. These prices represent inter-dealer quotations without retail markups, markdowns or

commissions and may not represent actual transactions.

Calendar Year HIGH LOW
2004

First Quarter $11.00 $ 8.6
Second Quarter $11.35 $ 8.1
Third Quarter $ 9.55 $ 63
Fourth Quarter $12.31 $ 8.1
2005:

First Quarter $11.71 $10.06
Second Quarter $11.03 $ 6.98
Third Quarter $11.36 $ 8.09
Fourth Quarter $12.71 $ 9.76

On February 28, 2006, there were approximately 270 holders of record of our common stock. On March 2, 2006, the last
reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Exchange was $12.03 per share.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
References in this document to “the Registrant,”
context otherwise requires.

“Kforce," “we," "

ur” or "us” refer to Kforce Inc. and its subsidiaries, except where the

This document contains forward-looking statements, particularly with respect to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations ("MD&A.") Additional written or oral forward-looking statements may be made by Kforce from time to time, in filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") or otherwise. Such forward-looking statements are within the meaning of that term in
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such statements may include, but may not be
limited to, projections of revenue, income, losses, cash flows, capital expenditures, integration of acquisitions, plans for future operations, effects
of interest rate variations, financing needs or plans, plans relating to products or services of Kforce, estimates concerning the effects of litigation or
other disputes, as well as assumptions to any of the foregoing. In addition, when used in this discussion, the terms “anticipates,” “estimates,”
"expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes” and variations thereof and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted. Future events and actual
results could differ materially from those set forth in or underlying the forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on any forward-looking statements contained in this report, which speak only as of the date of this report. Kforce undertakes no obliga-
tion to publicly publish the results of any adjustments to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events on or after the
date of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unexpected events.
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America
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Adjunct Professor,
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A. Gordon Tunstall
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David M. Kelly
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Anthony B. Petitt
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TRANSFER AGENT
Computershare Investor
Services

PO Box 43023

Providence, Rl 02940-3023
www.computershare.com
Shareholder Inquiries:
1(877) 282-1168
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ARIZONA
Phoenix
Scottsdale

CALIFORNIA
Capitola
Carlsbad
Colton

Encino
Gardena
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Los Angeles
Sacramento
San Diego
San Francisco
San Jose
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Westlake Village

COLORADO
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CONNECTICUT
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DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Washington

FLORIDA

Ft. Lauderdale
Miami
Orlando
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GEORGIA
Atlanta
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INDIANA
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KANSAS
Overland Park (Kansas City)
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KFORCE
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Kforce—77 offices to serve you.

KFORCE LOCATIONS

NORTH CAROLINA
Charlotte

OHIO

Blue Ash

Cincinnati

Dayton

Independence (Cleveland)
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Westerville (Columbus)
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Portland
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TEXAS
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Houston
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WASHINGTON
Bellevue
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Milwaukee
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Manila

To find the location nearest you, visit our Website at www.kforce.com or call 1 (813) 552-5000.
Corporate Headquarters: 1001 East Palm Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33605

Call our toll-free number 1 (800) 395-5575.
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